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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae, aged 82, is Chairman of
Raymond Industrial Limited (the “Company”). After obtaining
a Bachelor of Engineering Degree (Chemical Engineering)
in Canada in 1959, he spent three years as a lecturer at the
Hong Kong Technical College until 1964 when he founded
the Company.

Mr. Wong, John Ying Man, aged 52, was appointed
to the board (“Board”) of directors (“Directors”) of the
Company as the executive Director on 15 September 1997.
He graduated from the University of Manchester Institute
of Science & Technology in 1987 and joined the Company
in the same year. He worked as an engineer, project
coordinator, engineering manager and then general manager
for operations.

Mr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin, aged 52, son of Mr. Wong,
Wilson Kin Lae, was appointed as a non-executive Director
on 18 July 2001 and re-designated as an executive Director
on 19 April 2002. He became a deputy executive chairman
on 19 April 2007. Mr. Wong holds a Bachelor’s Degree in
Chemical Engineering and a Master Degree in Economics.
He is a U.S. Certified Public Accountant (CPA), a Certified
Management Accountant (CMA) and is certified in financial
management (CFM). He is an independent non-executive
Director of Modern Beauty Salon Holdings Limited (stock
code: 0919) and Nan Nan Resources Enterprise Limited
(stock code: 1229), both companies whose shares are listed
on The Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). He is also an independent
non-executive Director of Tak Lee Machinery Holdings
Limited (stock code: 8142) and Zhejiang United Investment
Holdings Group Limited (stock code: 8366), both companies
whose shares are listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Mok, Kin Hing, aged 55, was alternate Director to
Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae, the Chairman and executive
Director of the Company until 1st July 2008 when he was
appointed as an executive Director with effect from 1 July
2008. Mr. Mok joined the Company as a production planning
coordinator in 1990. He was appointed as a production
manager in 1993 and general manager of Raymond (Panyu
Nansha) Electrical Appliances Development Co. Ltd. in 1996.
Since 2005, Mr. Mok has been appointed as a member
of Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference in
Guangzhou City, Nansha District.
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Mr. Wong, David Ying Kit, aged 54, was appointed
a non-executive Director on 26 May 2014. Prior to the
appointment, he was an alternate Director of Dr. Wong,
Philip Kin Hang (retired non-executive Director) on 4 July
2008. Mr. Wong is a Registered Architect and Authorized
Person in Hong Kong. He is also a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Architects. Mr. Wong is the founder and
executive director of Hong Kong Wine Vault.

Mr. Xiong, Zhengfeng, aged 48, was appointed as a
non-executive Director on 3 January 2011. Mr. Xiong
graduated from the Department of Computer Science
of Nankai University and obtained his bachelor degree
in science in July 1992. He then obtained his master
degree in Economics from Nankai University School of
Economics in July 1995. Mr. Xiong joined China North
Industries Corporation in August 1995 and took up the
post of deputy general manager of China North Industries
Xiamen Corporation from October 1999 to November 2000.
Mr. Xiong is currently the chairman and executive director
of AKM Industrial Company Limited (“AKM Industrial”)
(stock code: 1639), a company whose shares are listed on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong. In November 2000,
Mr. Xiong joined Silver City International (Holdings) Ltd.,
(“Silver City”) the substantial shareholder (as defined in
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”))
of AKM Industrial, as assistant General Manager and was
promoted to the position of Deputy General Manager in
March 2004. He is a director of Alpha Luck Industrial Limited
(“Alpha Luck”), the substantial shareholder (as defined in
the Listing Rules) of AKM Industrial since March 2001 (Alpha
Luck is the subsidiary fully-funded by Silver City, and Silver
City is AKM Industrial’s beneficial owner). Mr. Xiong also
serves as a director of AKM Electronics Industrial (Panyu)
Ltd. and AKM Electronic Technology (Suzhou) Company
Limited.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung, aged 75, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director in 1988. He is
an entrepreneur with extensive international experience
in garment manufacturing and trading. He is the founder
of the Onwel Group of Companies in 1969 and has been
holding the position of executive chairman since 1982. Also,
Mr. Leung is the executive chairman of Fairtex Muay Thai
Fitness and Equipment (Hong Kong) Limited effected from
25 October 2013. He is an independent non-executive
director of Dickson Concepts (International) Limited (stock
code: 0113), a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange.

Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da, aged 57, joined in 1994 as
an independent non-executive Director. Mr. Fan holds a
Master’s Degree in Business Administration from the United
States of America. He is the chairman and managing director
of AsiaLink Capital Limited. He is also an independent non-
executive director of Technovator International Limited
(stock code: 1206), Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
(stock code: 0220), Shanghai Industrial Urban Development
Group Limited (stock code: 0563), Renhe Commercial
Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 1387), Tenfu
(Cayman) Holdings Company Ltd. (stock code: 6868), CITIC
Resources Holdings Limited (stock code: 1205), Hong Kong
Resources Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 2882),
China Development Bank International Investment Ltd. (stock
code: 1062), Neo-Neon Holdings Ltd. (stock code: 1868)
and CGN New Energy Holdings Co. Ltd. (stock code: 1811),
all listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He was
also an independent non-executive director of Guodian
Technology & Environment Group Corporation Limited
(stock code: 1296) and LT Commercial Real Estate Limited
(stock code: 0112), all listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, until his retirement with effect from 8 August
2017 and 30 June 2017, respectively.
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Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming, aged 81, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 2 July 2004.
Mr. Ng was previously a non-executive director of Dah Sing
Financial Holdings Limited (stock code: 0440), a company
whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange. He has
over 40 years of experience in hire purchase and leasing
finance.

Mr. Lo, Wilson Kwong Shun, aged 44, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 1 January
2013. He has more than 15 years of working experience
in investment banking and advising on corporate finance.
He is currently a deputy general manager of Guotai Junan
Capital Limited and independent non-executive director of
Kingdom Holdings Limited (stock code: 0528), a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He was
an independent non-executive directors of Huiyin Smart
Community Co., Ltd. (stock code: 1280) and Wuzhou
International Holdings Limited (stock code: 1369), all
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, until
his resignation with effect from 26 August 2017 and 4
September 2017, respectively. He also has three years of
experience in the field of auditing and accounting. He is
a member of the American Institute of CPA, a member of
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountant and a
member of CFA Institute. Mr. Lo obtained his bachelor of
commerce degree from University of British Columbia in
1995.
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| am pleased to present the annual results of the Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2017.

During the financial year (“FY”) of 2017, the Group continued
to face the challenges of an increase in operating costs
and shortage of skilled labour. Compounded by significant
appreciation of RMB in 2017, manufacturers encountered
tremendous difficulty to perform well. Despite our
management’s continuous effort to replace manual labour
with more automation, the Group was unable to maintain
last year’s profitability and gross margins. As a result, for
FY2017, the Group’s consolidated turnover decreased
to HK$997,697,000, representing a decrease of 2.13%
as compared with the same period in the previous year.
Net profit of the Group was HK$36,462,000, representing
a significant decrease of approximately 28.52%, as
compared with the net profit of HK$51,011,000 of the same
period in FY2016. Cash generated from operations was
HK$100,783,000 in FY2017. Cash and cash equivalents at
the end of FY2017 was HK$263,777,000 (HK$38,960,000
of which were dividend paid out during FY2017) as
compared with HK$251,634,000 at the beginning of
FY2017. The positive operating cash flow and substantial
cash balances enable the Group to continue paying
dividends to the shareholders. At the same time, the Group
continue to invest excess cash in research and development
(“R&D”), new technology and automation equipment.
Consequently, in December 2017, the Group was qualified
to become a High Technology Venture in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”).

In FY2017, the Group invested HK$38,486,000 (compared
with HK$22,728,000 in 2016) to set up new semi-
automated production lines for a series of new products,
purchased injection moulding machines and laboratory
testing equipment to strengthen our R&D capabilities. Part
of the increased capital expenditure was related to new
R&D projects in order to fulfill the High Technology Venture
minimum annual investment requirement; and we expect the
investment in these R&D projects will generate more sales
revenue in 2018. Qualifying for the High Technology venture
status would enable the Group to enjoy lower profit tax rate
and receive tax incentives from the PRC Government; and
increase our competitiveness among our peers. However,
investors should be cautious that increasing R&D expenses
today to develop more new products may result in sacrificing
short-term profits for higher medium term sales and profits
according to product life-cycle theory.

Chairman’s Statement
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The Group’s net profit in FY2017 was HK$36,462,000,
representing basic earnings per share of 7.54 Hong Kong
cents (net profit in FY2016 was HK$51,011,000, with basic
earnings per share of 10.66 Hong Kong cents).

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIALAND GOVERNANCE
INFORMATION

WORKPLACE QUALITY

The Group focused on 4 areas to enhance workplace

quality:

U

Working conditions: The Group’s labour policies
were in full compliance with the labour laws of the
PRC and Hong Kong as applicable to the staff in the
corresponding locations. The working hours, benefits
and welfares of all staff and workers were also in
compliance with the corresponding local labour laws
and fulfilled the working condition requirements from
the Group’s major customers and US/European retail
stores who conducted regular audits throughout the
year by third parties such as ITS and SGS.

Health and Safety: The Group was in full compliance
with the labour laws of the PRC and Hong Kong
applicable to the staff in the corresponding locations.
Occupational health and safety KPIs were illustrated
in the chart below:

7N & B 722017 F B IR % % A /08 36,462,000
P& E 7R & N B 7544 (2016 4F B B 5 )% % M| B B ¥
51,011,0007C * FRERZMERE 10.6611) -

RE - -HE8RER

TERIEEZR
AEEETEAERBRETERENES

(i)

ITHERR: AEENS IR TE2HFAaERNHE
BEMBBERENBERTEELS TEHILEES
TEGI - FREE TN T AR TIERE - R BMEF
B aEMNE DAY - RiTEDSFEHER
SE=77(Blan - ITS - SGS) HHRMETERNTIER
FPHBETERYTIERENER -

REEZE: AEEZ2NEERARTEEEME
BlREEMEETEE S DA REEBLTED
BERERL 2HNEREMERFLHTIER

FY 2017 vs

FY 2016

2017 &

FY 2017 FY 2016 B B

2017 20164 2016

B E B EAE BB AR L

(%)

Number of work injuries TI5&E 22 24 -8.33%
Medical Expenses due to TIEEENBEERY

work injuries (HKD) (B 15,516.74 149,911.47 -89.65%




(i)

The management of the Group is proud that they
could provide staff with a safer work place which
led to fewer work injuries in FY2017. The medical
expenses incurred were also much lower in FY2017
than in FY2016 due to better safety awareness at
the factory. The Group will try to replace hazardous
processes with more automation in FY2018 to lower
the number of work injuries.

Development and Training: The Group provides
directors and senior executives with latest Listing
Rules training. The Group also provides middle
management, regular employees and production line
workers with various relevant training. The KPIs in the
development and training of the Group are illustrated
in the chart below:

(i)

Chairman’s Statement
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Average

Training

Hours per

No. of Employee

Employees BRESETFY

EEA™ FHIRFE

(hrs)

(/)N )

Middle management RAREIRE 438 40
Regular employees FHET 343 53
Production line workers HAESTA 1,832 100

Labour Standard: The Group adopts recruitment
policies that prevent child labour and forced labour in
compliance with the applicable laws and regulations.
The Group also encourages workers to form labour
unions. A labour union was formed at the Group’s
Nansha, Panyu factory and union representatives
would hold regular meetings throughout the year to
communicate issues that could improve workers’
morale, upgrade the living quarters and working
environment, and report workers/management
disputes to the management of the Group.

(iv)
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ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE

The Group focused on aspects that would enhance
environmental protection and adopted policies that would
lower CO, emissions during the manufacturing processes,
minimize excessive use of resources such as electricity,
diesel, water and paper.

(i)

Carbon dioxide (CO,), Nitrogen Oxides
(NOx) and Sulphur Oxides (SOx) emissions

The two charts below illustrate the types of emissions
and their respective emission data. The Group will
continue to strive for measures to lower CO,, NOx
and SOx emissions and other air pollutants.

RIERERE

AEEZIRSRFRER TN - RO BRELEE
BREP -RCBRAOPRARTRBEERNES - X
KRR FEROBUR

() Z=E|MtH(CO, - AELY (NOx) RiRE LY
(SOx) I BERR

AT RR S BER Y E B AR B iR - A
BEEZNPTAIRE -G BELY - S
(12205 CNSE L NEES YL by

FY 2017 vs
FY 2016
2017 &
FY 2017 FY 2016 BB
2017 5 2016 4F 2016 5
BMERE B R4 BB ML
(%)
Electricity g
(kilotonnes CO,) (FRmE —&(bHk) 18.58 17.60 5.60%
oil JH
(kilotonnes CO,) (FRmE —&(bHk) 0.08 0.13 -34.92%
Gas £
(kilotonnes CO,) (FRmE —&(bhk) 0.02 0.02 12.32%
Total CO, emission S bR E
(kilotonnes) (FRmE) 18.68 17.75 5.24%




Emission data from the vehicle owned by the Group
are set out as follows:

Chairman’s Statement
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AEEHRA R TENBREEEIIT

Nitrogen Sulphur Particulate

Vehicle Type Oxides (NOx)  Oxides (SOx) Matter (PM)
HHER AFLY (NOX) WELY(SOx) BEEEH (PM)
(¢) (¢) @

(52) (52) (52)

Private Car FLRE 8,579.15 12717 631.66
Goods Vehicles HH 746,125.99 817.68 56,196.82
Total emission WHEmE 754,705.13 944.85 56,828.48

Additional explanation: Regarding other Greenhouse
gas emissions, such as methane, nitrous oxide,
hydrofluorocarbons, perfluorocarbons and sulphur
hexafluoride, since the Group did not adopt
manufacturing processes that would generate other
Greenhouse gas, the management of the Group
believes our manufacturing processes fully comply
with PRC China environmental laws, and we received
certification from PRC EPA (Environmental Protection
Administration) department and maintained our
ISO14001 status.

Furthermore, the management of the Group, in
collaboration with our customers and suppliers, has
successfully built a supply chain that fully complied
with RoHS (Restriction of Hazardous Substances)
and REACH (Registration, Evaluation, Authorisation
and Restriction of Chemicals) standards. Any non-
compliant supplier and their materials would be
rejected immediately and will not be used in the
manufacturing of finished goods to mitigate any
potential non-compliance risk. Our RoHS and
REACH test lab has also been ISO 17025 certified.
All the sourced materials and finished goods have
been sampling checked for RoHS and REACH
compliance to ensure that no hazardous waste nor
non-hazardous waste were produced during any
manufacturing processes at our factory. However,
there are 13.46 tonnes of hazardous waste and
701.21 tonnes of non-hazardous waste from parts
produced by our suppliers in FY2017.
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(ii)

Use of Resources

The chart below illustrates the consumption of
resources by type throughout FY2017 and show
comparative data with that of FY2016:

BREH

5 BB 7R S 18 2 2017 4 B B4F AT 6 P ) R B 2016 5
MRELENEREE RS BERERENER
ART%

FY 2017 vs
FY 2016
2017 &
FY 2017 FY 2016 B B
2017 & 2016 ¢ 2016
B TGS BB
(%)
Electricity ES)
(GWh) (FIKEL/NEF) 24.05 22.42 7.23%
oil b
(tonnes) (Rmg) 26.56 40.81 -34.92%
Gas K]
(kgs) (F3=) 9,417.25 8,387.45 12.28%
Water FEXE
(000m®) (FzLHK) 257.35 268.58 -4.18%
Packaging Materials Used HEmrAes
for Finished Goods MR EE
(tonnes) (AME) 2,322.55 2,331,53 -0.39%

The Group was particularly pleased with the
environmental performance as our operating team
achieved lower CO, emissions and used less non-
renewable resources in FY2017.
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(iii)

Additional explanation: From the chart on the Use
of Resources above, water consumption decreased
by approximately 4.18% in FY2017 compared with
that in FY2016 because of better awareness of water
conservation and the recycling of more industrial use
water. Also, oil usage was significantly reduced by
approximately 34.92% as the management of the
Group customized most of diesel/gas based fork-
lifts to electric fork-lifts for internal transportation of
parts and materials. Unfortunately, electricity and
gas consumption increased by approximately 7.23%
and 12.28% respectively as a result of molding new
products of larger size and transporting larger molded
parts within the factory. We will continue to find
effective measures in FY 2018 to control the gas and
electricity consumption. Total packaging materials
used for finished goods depends on the product mix,
and the Group, as a responsible OEM manufacturer,
continues to discuss with our customers on ways
to minimize use of packaging materials; and total
packaging materials used in FY2017 as compared
with FY2016, decreased slightly by 0.4%.

The environment and natural resources

Apart from the efforts shown above to minimize
emissions and use of resources, the Group has
also initiated energy savings projects since FY2012
and FY2013. During these two years, the Group
invested in solar energy panel to heat up water
for our workers and installed LED lightings in our
offices (both in Hong Kong and in the PRC) and in
our manufacturing facilities in the PRC. Both energy
savings initiatives not only generated savings for
the Group, but also fostered a strong corporate
culture to promote sustainability from workers to
top management. Such culture enabled the Group
to meet the ESG reporting requirements early since
FY2012, and invested early to build up supply chain
loyalty, customer loyalty and enhanced our Group’s
reputation and image in Guangzhou, the PRC.

(iii)
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OPERATING PRACTICES

The Group focused on key areas to enhance management
and formulate some operating best practice procedures by
tightening corporate governance policies and setting out
guidelines for preventing staff and workers from committing
frauds and engaging in illegal activities.

U)

(i)

(i)

Anti-corruption policy was straightly enforced
among all management personnel and all suppliers
in the Group’s supply chain. The Group was not
aware of any legal cases regarding corruption of the
Group’s management and employees. The Group
also has an independent internal audit department
reporting directly to the chairman of the Group’s
audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) and has a
whistleblowing system to notify the audit committee
of any potential fraud and malpractices.

Product Safety: The Group has a policy to work
closely with customers to cooperate on any recalls
and safety/health related issue; and the Group has a
quality control system that handles customers (and
related products) complaints. Root cause analysis
would be conducted on each major customer
complaint to avoid re-occurrence of product defects.

Risk Management: The Group has updated the
policy on risk management, and the Board, the Audit
Committee, and the management will work with
outside consultants and auditors to identify potential
risks not previously identified. At the end of FY2017,
because of changes in environmental regulation in
the PRC, a number of paper mills were forced to shut
down, leading to temporary shortage of packaging
related materials. The Group’s management has
already implemented counter measures to mitigate
such risk that might lead to disruption of production.
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COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

The Group focused on key areas to enhance management
in order to create a better community by implementing
programs that built a better society through a wide range of
activities and initiatives:

(i) Encourage the use of recycled paper: The Group
has begun a program to use more recycled paper
in operations including printing interim & annual
report booklets; and working with customers to print
product instruction books by using recycled paper
materials.

(ii) Investment in new talents: The Group continued
to sponsor programs at Hong Kong Polytechnic
University and members of the Group gave guest
lectures at Hong Kong Polytechnic University during
FY2017. Members of the Group also sponsored the
Music Alive! programme at the Hong Kong University
of Science and Technology; and acted as an
independent manager at the TWGHs Wong Fut Nam
College.

(iii) Education involvement: Members of the Group’s

management participated in fundraising charity

concert organized by the Hong Kong Philharmonic

Society to support community programmes for

young musicians from less privileged families; and

participated in Intimacy of Creativity, an international
music composer symposium organized by Hong

Kong University of Science and Technology.

Corporate Governance: Members of the Group’s
management founded the HKINED Association
(Hong Kong Independent Non-Executive Directors
Association) in October 2015 in Hong Kong, and the
Association held the second INED Conference on
22 September 2017 at Hong Kong Exhibition Center
to promote better corporate governance practices.
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Create a better Society: Members of the Group’s
management actively participated in fundraising
event for the Hong Kong Correctional Services
Department to support education programmes for
prison inmates on 7 December 2017. Members of
the Group’s management also participated in the
fundraising event for Tung Wah Group of Hospitals
held on 2 December 2017.

Wong, Wilson Kin Lae
Chairman
Hong Kong, 28 March 2018
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL POSITION

The liquidity position of the Group was satisfactory. Its
current ratio was 3.10 as of 31 December 2017, compared
with 3.20 as of 31 December 2016. The gearing ratio was
0.33 as of 31 December 2017 (31 December 2016: 0.30)
and it was computed by the total liabilities over the net
assets.

During FY2017, the Group’s trade receivables turnover
stood at 71 days, compared with 77 days in FY2016. The
inventory turnover in FY2017 was 60 days, compared with
49 days in FY2016.

Bank balances and cash were HK$263,777,000 as of
31 December 2017 (2016: HK$251,634,000), representing
an increase of HK$12,143,000 as compared to the figures
in the same period in FY2016, which was mainly due to
stronger cash flow generated from operations.

There were no bank borrowings as of 31 December
2017, and the Group’s debt to equity ratio was 33% as of
31 December 2017 (2016: 30%).

The Group had no contingent liabilities as of 31 December
2017 (2016: Nil).

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

During the year, the capital structure of the Company has
not been changed with details shown in note 20(a) to the
financial statements.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The board of the Company has proposed a final dividend
of 4 Hong Kong cents per ordinary share for the year
ended 31 December 2017. The proposed final dividend,
if approved by the shareholders at the forthcoming annual
general meeting, will be paid on Wednesday, 13 June 2018
to the shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on Wednesday, 6 June 2018.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed for
the following periods:

(1)

For the purpose of determining shareholders who
are entitled to attend and vote at the forthcoming
annual general meeting to be held on Friday, 25 May
2018 (the “2018 AGM”), the register of members of
the Company will be closed from Monday, 21 May
2018 to Friday, 25 May 2018, both days inclusive. In
order to be qualified for attending and voting at the
2018 AGM, all transfer documents, accompanied
by the relevant share certificates, should be lodged
for registration with the Company’s share registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
at Shops 1712-1716, 17/F., Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong no later than
4:30 p.m. on Friday, 18 May 2018.

For the purpose of determining shareholders who
are qualified for the final dividend, the register of
members of the Company will be closed from
Monday, 4 June 2018 to Wednesday, 6 June 2018,
both days inclusive. In order to be qualified for the
final dividend, all transfer documents, accompanied
by the relevant share certificates, should be lodged
for registration with the Company’s share registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
at Shops 1712-1716, 17/F., Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong no later than
4:30 p.m. on Friday, 1 June 2018.

CHARGES ON ASSETS

The Group had no charges on assets as of 31 December
2017 (2016: Nil).

EERER GBS ET
ARAFGH TR L (IR B B

(1)

BETREHEREERARRBZR2018F 582510
(ER) BT 2REAF K (L TEHE 201845
BRAFAE)) LWE®R  AAAKMK2018F5 A4
21H(E#—)ZE2018F5A25H(EHH) (81
HREMKX) BEMEELBFETFE - ABRRERLE
2018 FRRBF AW N E LIRE - TEBP MG
HRBBRZEEN2018FE5 818 (R ) F4F4:30
AR RARMNIBPE — BERRBLFELER
naE It ABAZRRERISIHKAEMPLITE
1712-1716 =

BETEWEEREAHRENER - NARHER2018
F6H4B(BE—)ZE201856 A6H(EH=) (&
FEHEMR) EEMEECBETE - AHEREHEK
BREIRRE - FTABFE X ERAE BIREAN 2018
F6A1R(EHA) THF 430 XEARD KM B
Fla — BERRBELZLARAR Wit AEER
ERBER18IFAMALATEI7T12-1716 F ©

BEEKR
R2017F12 A31H » REBWEEERP(20164F : £) o




Management Discussion and Analysis

FUTURE PROSPECTS

The Group experienced a very challenging year in FY2017.
However, the Group hopes that with increased R&D
investment in 2017 and 2018, many new innovative
products will be launched successfully in FY2018 and the
sales generated from these new products will contribute to
both revenue and profits. The Group will continue to find
a balanced strategy to develop both the export overseas
market and the sales of the PRC domestic market at the
same time. Nevertheless, with the depreciating US dollars
experienced in early 2018, and the uncertain amount of R&D
and marketing expenses required to introduce new products
into the market, investors should be cautious about short-
term financial impact due to these factors of uncertainty.

In order to attain the High Technology Venture status, the
Group had increased investment in new technology and
R&D programs in FY2017. In FY2018, the Group expects
to place even more resources in R&D and will have several
joint development programs with our customers and
higher educational institutions and research centers. After
we successfully received the High Technology Venture
recognition from PRC government, management of the
Group will seek new opportunities with existing and new
customers at the same time, as well as forming even
stronger partnerships with key strategic customers to
increase the turnover of the Group.

During FY2017, the Group successfully launched several
new air purifiers, a series of successful new grooming
products, as well as a series of men shavers with innovative
cutting system in the US and Europe and PRC markets.
The Group also launched a series of new products in India
in FY2017. The Group believes that India is a fast growing
country with great potential to rapidly grow their consumer
market. The Group will continue to seek similar cooperation
opportunities with more customers and launch more
innovative products in the emerging market. We expect to
have cooperation with one of our customers to launch a
new product in Africa in FY2018.
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In order to speed up the launch of products, the Group
invested in upgrading the remote access of web-based
operating systems, including a new bar code inventory
tracking system; “Smart” robotic system in facilitating
injection moulding and paint spraying processes; a custom-
built injection moulding monitoring system to keep track of
moulding cycles, moulding history and tooling life; and a
remote access monitoring system that top management can
watch and monitor operations at the manufacturing facilities.

Finally, in order to better manage risk, the management had
completed implementation of a risk management system
to calculate certain key performance indicators (“KPIs”) in
FY2017 to focus on lowering financial and operating risks in
important areas (such as weekly and monthly graphical KPIs
to keep track of price trend of certain critical components in
the supply chain). In addition, the Group has completed the
installation of new firewalls and tightened Cloud security to
lower cyber risks and will continue to upgrade the Group’s IT
systems to avoid risks caused by the use of invalid softwares
and hardwares.

STAFF

The Group currently employs approximately 35 Hong Kong
staff members and provides them with the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme. Our factory in the PRC employs
approximately 410 to 450 staff members, and workers
employed directly or indirectly ranged from 2,200 to 2,700
persons during the year. Remuneration is determined
by reference to their qualifications, experiences and
performances.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to extend the Board’s

appreciation to all our staff for their hard work and dedication
throughout the year.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

Most of the Group’s transactions were conducted in the
United States dollars, British Pound, Hong Kong dollars
and Renminbi. The Group does not foresee any substantial
exposure to foreign currency fluctuations and thus use of
financial instruments for exchange rate hedging purpose is
not considered.
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The Board has the pleasure to submit the annual report
together with the audited financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2017.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

The Company is incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong
and has its registered office and principal place of business
at Rooms 1801-1813, 18th Floor, Grandtech Centre, 8 On
Ping Street, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES & BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is sale of electrical
home appliances. The principal activities and other
particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company are set out in
note 25 to the financial statements. Further discussion and
analysis of these activities as required by Schedule 5 to the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including a discussion
of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group and
an indication of likely future developments in the Group’s
business, can be found in the Chairmen’s Statement and
Management Discussion and Analysis set out on pages 7
to 20 of this annual report. This discussion forms part of the
directors’ report.

Review on the Group’s business
performance
- Analysis using financial
key performance indicators
—  Discussion on the Company’s
environmental policies and
performance
—  Discussion on the Company’s
compliance with the relevant
laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on
the Company
Principal risks and uncertainties facing
the Group
Future prospects of the Group

Pages 7 to 20
Pages 7 and 17

Pages 10to 13

Pages 810 9

Page 19 to0 20

Pages 19 to 20

Report of the Directors
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KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Company maintains good relationships with its
employees by taking all practicable measures, including
but not limited to improving, reviewing and updating its
polices on remuneration and benefits, training, occupational
health and safety, to ensure that all the staff are reasonably
remunerated.

The Company is in good relationship with its customers
and is always improving its communication mechanism with
customers to ensure all the complaints or feedback from its
customers can be informed by the Company in time and the
customers receive service of high quality.

The Company maintains long-period good cooperation with
its domestic and overseas suppliers, which are of good
reputation in the industry.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of revenues from sales of goods and
purchases attributable to the Group’s major customers and
suppliers during the financial year are as follows:
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Percentage of
the Group’s total
rEEZEHBESE

Revenue from

sales of goods Purchases
SHEERBA IR
The largest customer BAREP 29.60% N/ATiE A
Five largest customers in aggregate AREFEE 92.09% N/ATiE
The largest supplier =AM ER N/ATREH 18.67%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate AR EEEET N/A i F 42.32%

None of directors, their associates or any shareholders of
the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors, own
more than 5% of the Company’s issued shares) had any
interest in these major customers and suppliers during the
year.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2017 and the state of affairs of the Group as at that date are
set out in the financial statements on pages 60 to 135.
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RECOMMENDED DIVIDEND

An interim dividend of 2 HK cents per share was paid for
the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: 2 HK cents). The
Board proposed the payment of a final dividend of 4 HK
cents per share (2016: a final dividend of 4 HK cents per
share and a special dividend of 2 HK cents) in respect of the
year ended 31 December 2017.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

HK$50,000 charitable donation was made by the Group
during the year.

ISSUED SHARES

Details of the movements in the issued shares of the
Company during the year are set out in note 20(a) to the
financial statements.

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company during
the year are set out in note 26(b) to the financial statements.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s shares
during the year ended 31 December 2017.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of
this report are:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae (Chairman)

Mr. Wong, John Ying Man
Mr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin
Mr. Mok, Kin Hing

Non-Executive Directors:
Mr. Xiong, Zhengfeng

Ms. Li, Yinghong (resigned on 26 May 2017)
Mr. Wong, David Ying Kit

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung

Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da
Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming
Mr. Lo, Wilson Kwong Shun

Alternate Director:
Mr. Zhang, Yuankun

(alternate to Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae)

Report of the Directors
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

During the year and up to the date of this report, Mr. Wong,
Wilson Kin Lae; Mr. Wong, John Ying Man; Mr. Wong,
Raymond Man Hin; Mr. Mok, Kin Hing and Mr. Zhang,
Yuankun are also directors in certain subsidiaries of the
Company. Other directors of the Company’s subsidiaries
during the year and up to the date of this report include : Mr.
Hau, Chi Yung; Mr. Huang, Jingxi; Mr. Law, Anthony Kwok
Yung; Ms Luk, Yin Yee and Yan, Yong Sheng.

In accordance with Article 112 of the Company’s articles
of association (“Articles of Association”), Mr. Wong,
Raymond Man Hin; Mr. Xiong, Zhengfeng and Mr. Fan,
Anthony Ren Da will retire from the Board by rotation at the
forthcoming 2018 AGM. They will offer themselves for re-
election at the 2018 AGM.

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract with the Company or its subsidiaries which is
not determinable within one year without payment of
compensation other than statutory compensation.

The non-executive Directors do not have specific terms
of appointment but are subject to retirement by rotation in
accordance with the Articles of Association.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2017, the interests of the Directors
in the shares of the Company, its subsidiaries and other
associated corporations (within the meaning of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) as recorded in the
register maintained by the Company under Section 352 of
the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules were
as follows:
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND

UNDERLYING SHARES (Continued)

Report of the Directors
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() Interests in issued shares () BITRGOER
Number of shares
RO#E
% of total
Issued
Personal Family  Corporate Share Shares
Capacity Interests  Interests  Interests Options Total AFEET
5% BAER  FEEZ  iEER BhRE B ROEIE
(Note 1) (Note 4) (Note 5)
(1) (i4) (i15)
Executive Directors
HiTEF
Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae Interest of spouse & Interest - 150,000 105,875,181 - 106,025,181 21.82%
BEAE of a controlled corporation (Note 2) (Note 3)
RENER IR EH RN ER (32) (33)
Mr. Wong, John Ying Man Beneficial Owner 11,839,448 - - 6,800,000 18,639,448 3.84%
BREKE EaEA
Mr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin Beneficial owner 16,217,972 - - - 16,217,972 3.34%
BXELE ERERA
Mr. Mok, Kin Hing Beneficial owner 625,000 - - 5800000 6,425,000 1.32%
SREgE ERERA
Non-Executive Directors
HHITEE
Mr. Xiong, Zhengfeng Beneficial owner - - - 1,950,000 1,950,000 0.40%
RREBEE ERERA
Mr. Wong, David Ying Kit Beneficial owner 1,350,000 - - - 1,350,000 0.28%
BRESE EaEEA
Independent Non-Executive Directors
BUFHTEE
Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung Beneficial Owner 4,294,300 - - 393,800 4,688,100 0.96%
RRNERE EaEA
Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da Beneficial Owner 644,300 - - 993,800 1,638,100 0.34%
BLERE ERERA
Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming Beneficial Owner 1,323,800 - - - 1,323,800 0.27%
AL L EREAA
Mr. Lo, Wilson Kwong Shun Beneficial Owner 300,000 - - - 300,000 0.06%
ERERE EaEEA
Alternate Directors
REF
Mr. Zhang, Yuankun Beneficial Owner 2,630,000 - - - 2,630,000 0.54%
FEEE ERERA
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (Continued)

(i)  Interests in issued shares (Continued)
Notes:

1) The shares are registered under the names of the Directors
who are the beneficial shareholders.

) Ms. Sun, Amelia Kwing Hai, spouse of Mr. Wong, Wilson
Kin Lae, is the beneficial shareholder.

©)) Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae is the beneficial shareholder of
91.7% of the issued shares of Broadbridge Enterprises
Limited and Diamond-Harvest Limited, which owned
27,993,421 and 77,881,760 shares respectively in the
Company as at 31 December 2017.

4) Share options are granted to the Directors under the
Share Option Scheme (the “Scheme”) approved by the
shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting on 6
June 2003, details of which are set out in the section
headed “Share Option Scheme” below. The Scheme was
terminated on 5 June 2013.

5) The percentage was compiled based on the total number
of issued shares of the Company (i.e. 485,917,260 ordinary
shares) as at 31 December 2017.

All the interests disclosed under this section represent long
positions in the shares.

(i)  Interests in underlying shares

Apart from as disclosed under the section headed “Share
Option Scheme” below, none of the Directors or any of
their spouses or children under eighteen years of age
has interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company, or any of its holding
Company, subsidiaries or other associated corporations, as
recorded in the register required to be kept under section
352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Details of the equity-linked agreements entered into during
the year or subsisting at the end of the year are set out
below,

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Share options are granted to the Directors, employees
and other eligible participants specified under the Scheme
approved by shareholders of the Company at the
extraordinary general meeting on 6 June 2003. Details of the
Scheme are as follows:

Purpose To give eligible participants incentives or
rewards for their contribution or potential
contribution to the Group

Participants (i

=

Directors, employees of any member
of the Group or any controlling
shareholder of the Company
(“Controlling Shareholder”) or any
company controlled by a Controlling
Shareholder,

(i Holder of any securities issued
by any member of the Group or
any Controlling Shareholder of the
Company or any company controlled
by a Controlling Shareholder,

(iii) (@) any business or joint venture

partner, contractor, agent or

representative of,

(b) any supplier of goods or
services to, or

(c) any customer or distributor of
goods or services of,

Any member of the Group or
any Controlling Shareholder or a
company controlled by a Controlling
Shareholder;

and for the purpose of the Scheme,
shall include any company controlled
by one or more persons belonging to
any of the above classes of persons
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Total number of
ordinary shares
available for issue
and the percentage
of the issued share
capital that it
represents as at the
date of the annual
report

Maximum entitlement
of each participant

Period within which
the securities must
be taken up under
an option

Minimum period for
which an option
must be held before
it can be exercised

Amount payable on
acceptance of the
option

Period within which
payments must be
made

Basis of determining
the exercise price

The remaining life of
the Scheme

19,762,600 ordinary shares and
4.07 % of the issued share capital

1% of the aggregate number of
ordinary shares in issue in any
12-month period up to the date of
grant

Within a maximum period of 10
years commencing from the date of
grant of such options

Not applicable

HK$1.00 for each lot of share
options granted

21 days from the date of the offer

The higher of (i) the closing price of
the shares on the offer date or (i) the
average closing price of the shares
for the 5 trading days immediately
preceding the offer of the option,
provided that the exercise price is
not less than the nominal value of
the share

The Scheme shall remain in force
until 5 June 2013 unless otherwise
terminated in accordance with the
terms of the Scheme
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

As at 31 December 2017, the Directors, employees and
other participants had the following interests in options to
subscribe for shares of the Company (market value per
share at 29 December 2017 was HK$1.08) which were
granted for a consideration of HK$1 for each lot of options
under the Scheme. The options are unlisted. Each option
gives the holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary share
of the Company .

No. of options

Report of the Directors
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BREZA
Market
value
per share
Heldatist  Granted Cancelled Exercised Outstanding Period at date
January during during during at the during which of grant
2017  theyear  theyear  theyear  yearend options are Exercise  of options*
#2017 RER RER RER  RELY  Date exercisable priceper  RERE
£1A1H Rz Tz iz KTz  granted BRETTE share RHAHZ
&% BREZE BREZE BREZE BREHE RLAH pdi]| BRITEE SRWE*
HK$ HKS$
B BT
Directors
Bz
Executive Directors:
HITEE -
Mr. Wong, John Ying Man 3,300,000 - - - 3,800,000 30 June2008 30 June 2008 to 0.910 0.844
BREEE 2008F6A30H 29 June 2018
2008%6H30EZ
2018567290
3,000,000 - - - 3,000,000 20 July2012 20 July 201210 0.690 0.690
201267 A20H 19 July 2022
2012%7H2068%
202267 /198

R LFFHR MREEXARAR

29



SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

No. of options

BRRETE (e

BREHE
Market
value
per share
Heldat1st  Granted Cancelled Exercised Outstanding Period at date
January during during during at the during which of grant
2017  theyear  theyear  theyear  yearend options are Exercise  of options*
#2017 RER RER RER  RELH  Date exercisable priceper  REBRE
£1A1A Rz Tz iz ®f7ffz  granted BRETTE share REAHZ
it BREHE BREZR BREZE BREYE RiAS pdi]| BRTEE SRWE*
HK$ HKS
BT B
Executive Directors: (Continued)
HITEE: (B)
Mr. Mok, Kin Hing 2,800,000 - - - 2,800,000 30 June 2008 30 June 2008 to 0.910 0.844
el 2008F6A30H 29 June 2018
2008F6A30HZE
201846 A29H
3,000,000 - - - 3,000,000 20 July 2012 20 July 2012 to 0.690 0.690
2012F7A208  19July 2022
01257A20H%
202267 R 19H
Non-Executive Directors:
FETEE
Mr. Xiong, Zhengfeng 450,000 - - - 450,000 30 June 2008 30 June 2008 to 0.910 0.844
BFEELE 2008F6A30H 29 June 2018
2008F6A30HZE
201846 A29H
300,000 - - - 300000  60ctober2009 6 October 2009 to 0.630 0.610
2009610468 5 October 2019
2000F10A6HZE
2019F10A5H
1,200,000 - - - 1,200,000 20 July 2012 20 July 2012 to 0.690 0.690
2012F7A208  19July 2022
01257A20H%

20227 A19H



Report of the Directors

EERHRE
SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) fE R w8l ()
No. of options
b HE
Market
value
per share
Heldatist  Granted Cancelled Exercised Outstanding Period at date
January during during during at the during which of grant
2017  theyear  theyear  theyear  yearend options are Exercise  of options*
#2017 RER RER RER  RELH  Date exercisable priceper  RERE
£1A1H Rz Tz iz KTz  granted BRETTE share RHAHZ
&% BREZE BREZE BREZE BREHE RLAH pdi]| BRTEE SRWE*
HK$ HKS$
BT BT
Non-Executive Directors: (Continueq)
FHTEE  (8)
Ms. Li, Yinghong 1,750,000 - - (1,750,000) - 30 June 2008 30 June 2008 to 0.910 0.844
(resigned 26 May 2017) 200856 A30H 29 June 2018
ALt 200856 H30HZE
2018567290
1,500,000 - - (1,500,000) - 60ctober2009 6 October 2009 to 0.630 0.610
200910 A6 H 5 October 2019
2000F10A6HZE
2019510 F58
1,200,000 - - (1,200,000) - 20July 2012 20 July 2012 to 0.690 0.690
201267 A20H 19 July 2022
2012%7H2068%
202267 H198
Independlent Non-Executive Directors:
BUAHTEE
Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung 393,800 - - - 393,800 30 June 2008 30 June 2008 to 0910 0.844
REERE 2008F6A30H 29 June 2018
2008%6H30EZ
2018567290
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BRRETE (e

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

No. of options

BREHE
Market
value
per share
Heldat1st  Granted Cancelled Exercised Outstanding Period at date
January during during during at the during which of grant
2017  theyear  theyear  theyear  yearend options are Exercise  of options*
#2017 RER RER RER  RELH  Date exercisable priceper  REBRE
£1A1A Rz Tz iz ®f7ffz  granted BRETTE share REAHZ
it BREHE BREZR BREZE BREYE RiAS pdi]| BRTEE SRWE*
HK$ HKS
BT B
Independent Non-Executive Directors: (Continued)
BUFHTEE  (8)
Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da 393,800 - - - 393,800 30 June 2008 30 June 2008 to 0.910 0.844
BIELE 2008F6A30H 29 June 2018
2008F6A30HZE
201846 A29H
300,000 - - - 300000  60ctober 2009 6 October 2009 to 0.630 0.610
2000F10A6H  50ctober 2019
2000F10A6HZE
2019F10A5H
300,000 - - - 300,000 20 July 2012 20 July 2012 to 0.690 0.690
201267 A20H 19 July 2022
2012 7H208E
202267 R 19H
Employees 2,235,000 - - (9950000 1,240,000 30 June 2008 30 June 2008 to 0.910 0.844
k& 2008F6A30H 29 June 2018
2008F6A30HZE
201846 A29H
260,000 - - - 260,000  60October 2009 6 October 2009 to 0.630 0.610
2000F10A6H  50ctober 2019
2000F10A6HZE
2019F10A5H
1,425,000 - - - 1425000 20 July 2012 20 July 2012 to 0.690 0.690
201267 A20H 19 July 2022
20126 7H208E

20227 A19H




SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

No. of options

Report of the Directors
ESERSE

BRESTE (@)

b HE
Market
value
per share
Heldatist  Granted Cancelled Exercised Outstanding Period at date
January during during during at the during which of grant
2017  theyear  theyear  theyear  yearend options are Exercise  of options*
#2017 RER RER RER  RELH  Date exercisable priceper  RERE
£1A1H Rz Tz iz KTz  granted BRETTE share RHAHZ
&% BREZE BREZE BREZE BREHE RLAH pdi]| BRTEE SRWE*
HK$ HKS$
BT BT
Other eligible persons 1,600,000 - - (600,000 900,000 30 June 2008 30 June 2008 to 0910 0.844
AR ERAL 2008F6A30H 29 June 2018
2008%6H30EZ
2018567298
25,807,600 - - (6,045,000 19,762,260
Notes: MI5E -

The options granted to the Directors are registered under the names
of the Directors who are the beneficial owners.

*

Being the weighted average closing price of the Company’s
ordinary shares immediately before the dates on which the
options were granted or exercised (as the case may be).

Information on the accounting policy for the options granted
and the weighted average value per option is provided
in note 2(m) and note 19 to the financial statements
respectively.

Apart from disclosed above, at no time during the year
ended 31 December 2017 was the Company, or any of
its holding company, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries
a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES
As at 31 December 2017, according to the register of

members kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of
the SFO and so far as is known to, or can be ascertained

EFERRRADFZRDREERD 2 &

R2017F 12 A31 8 @ HARQ G IR EFEFH 160 5 336 1518
EHFEZHRRZLEM  HESEELAEBEEREMIE
R THAL/EE(TEEESE) RARQEKY - HEK

after reasonable enquiry by the Directors, the following 2 REFFHEBIRIEZHEKGIEXVIHE 2 &35 K AR
persons/entities, other than a Director, had an interest in the ~ AR B TR 2 4% ¢
shares and underlying shares of the Company which would
fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:
Number of shares
ROBE
% of total
issued
Registered Corporate Family Total shares
Capacity shareholders interests interest ALER BEBT
2 BEERE EEER FEER RORKEHE RGBS E
(Notg 6)
(it6)
Substantial shareholders
TERE
Ms. Sun, Amelia Kwing Hai Beneficial Owner & 150,000 105,875,181 - 106,025,181 21.82%
FMELt Interest of spouse (Note 1)
ELEA AREENER (581)
Broadbridge Enterprises Limited  Beneficial Owner 27,993,421 - - 27,993,421 5.76%
EZHEA (Note 2)
(#2)
Diamond-Harvest Limited Beneficial Owner 77,881,760 - - 77,881,760 16.03%
EREEA (Note 3)
(3£3)
Silver Talent Development Limited Beneflcial Owner 53,080,800 - - 53,080,800 10.92%
RUBRBRDA EnfBA
Dr. Wong, Philip Kin Hang Interest of a controlled - 40,205,688 - 40,205,688 8.27%
corporation (Note 4)
REEHZBRER (4)
Mrs. Wong Cheng, Interest of a controlled - 40,205,688 - 40,205,688 8.27%
Gertude Kwok Cheung corporation (Note 4)
RREHZBER (5t4)
Ho Kit Man Inc. Beneficial Owner 40,119,688 - - 40,119,688 8.26%
ExBBA (Note 4)
(34)
Webb, David Michael Beneficial owner 9,957,008 19,215,992 - 29,173,000 6.00%
&interest of a (Note 5)
controlled corporation (75)

Bl ARZEGAE AR




SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (Continued)

Notes:

1)

Among these shares, 27,993,421 shares were held through
Broadbridge Enterprises Limited and 77,881,760 shares
were held through Diamond-Harvest Limited. These two
companies were beneficially controlled by spouse of Ms.
Sun, Amelia Kwing Hai and Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae.,
Ms. Sun, Amelia Kwing Hai is also a shareholder, who
owned 8.3% of the issued shares of the above-mentioned
companies.

Ms. Sun, Amelia Kwing Hai and Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae
hold 8.3% and 91.7% of the issued shares of Broadbridge
Enterprises Limited, respectively.

Ms. Sun, Amelia Kwing Hai and Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae
hold 8.3% and 91.7% of the issued shares of Diamond-
Harvest Limited, respectively.

Among these shares, 40,119,668 shares were held through
Ho Kit Man Inc. and 86,000 shares held through Sunnydale
Enterprises Holdings Ltd.. These two companies were 50%
controlled by Dr. Wong, Philip Kin Hang and his spouse,
Mrs. Wong Cheng, Gertude Kwok Cheung, respectively.

These shares were held through Preferable Situation Assets
Limited, a company wholly-owned by Mr. Webb, David
Michael.

The percentage was compiled based on the total number
of issued shares of the Company (i.e. 485,917,260 ordinary
shares) as at 31 December 2017.

All the interests disclosed under this section represent long
positions in the shares of the Company.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available and within
the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this annual
report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public
float under the Listing Rules.
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B o P B A B TR A 7 50% M s o

ZEBRDDEBMFL I NALRBESEEL
)

Z 5 W0 ThiE 8 B Webb, David Michael t £ 2 B Hi B 2
Preferable Situation Assets Limited. 74 °

BMAOBRE DB EN2017E12 A31 BB BITRG
485,917,260 E3@ALETE -

LB DI Z A BN AR B Z D P HIAF R -

RANBIERE
READFRABBERENEN KRR REEFM
RAERTRAH  ARAGRFEEHARDAERAA
BH EMRAMREZ ARBRE -

R LFFHR MREEXARAR

35



INDEMNITY OF DIRECTORS

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 469
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of
the directors of the Company is currently in force and was
in force throughout this year. The Company has purchased
suitable insurances for the Directors with respect to their
possible legal proceedings.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACTS

Except for the transactions disclosed in note 23(b) to
the financial statements, no transaction, arrangement or
contract of significance subsisted during or at the end of
the year in which the Director or an entity connected with
the Director is or was materially interested, either directly or
indirectly.

FIVEYEAR SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 136
of this annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Articles of Association and there was no restriction against
such rights under the laws of Hong Kong, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis
to its existing shareholders.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No substantial contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Group were entered into or existed during
the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Significant related party transaction entered into by the
Group on 9 May 2014, which constitutes connected
transaction under the Listing Rules, is disclosed in note 23(b)
to the financial statements. Details of which please refer to
the announcement of the Company dated 12 May 2014.
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Significant related party transactions entered into by the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2017, which
do not constitute connected transactions under the Listing
Rules are disclosed in note 23(a) to the financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, there is no related party
transaction set out in note 23 to the financial statements fall
into the category of connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions under the Listing Rules. The
Company has complied with the requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules with respect to the
connected transaction.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund scheme
which covers all of the Group’s employees. Particulars of
these retirement schemes are set out in note 17 to the
financial statements.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
and considers all the Independent Non-Executive Directors
to be independent.

AUDITORS

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited will retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-
appointment of Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited as auditors
of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting. There has been no change in the auditors
of the Company in the preceding three years.

By order of the Board

Wong, Wilson Kin Lae
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2018

Report of the Directors
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The Company puts great emphasis on corporate
governance by reviewing and strengthening corporate
governance measures from time to time. The board of the
Company believes that shareholders can derive maximum
benefits from good corporate governance.

Throughout the year, the Company was in compliance with
the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set
out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, with an exception
of a deviation from code provision A.4.1 and A.4.3 of the
CG Code in respect of the service term of independent non-
executive directors.

Under code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, non-executive
directors should be appointed for a specific term and subject
to rotation and re-election.

None of the existing non-executive directors (including
independent non-executive directors) of the Company is
appointed for a specific term. This constitutes a deviation
from code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code. However,
all of them are subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the annual general meeting of the Company in
accordance with the provisions of the Company’s Articles
of Association. In addition, the Company has received
the annual confirmation of independence from each
independent non-executive director and the Board believes
that the independent non-executive directors continue to be
independent.

Under code provision A.4.3 of the CG Code, independent
non-executive directors who serve more than 9 years could
be relevant to the determination of a nonexecutive director’s
independence. If an independent non-executive director
serves more than 9 years, his further appointment should
be subject to a separate resolution to be approved by
shareholders. The papers to shareholders accompanying
that resolution should include the reasons why the board
believes he is still independent and should be re-elected.
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Save for Mr. Lo, Wilson Kwong Shun, all independent non-
executive directors have served in the Group for more than
9 years. This constitutes a deviation from code provision
A.4.3 of the CG Code. However, all independent non-
executive directors are subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company in
accordance with the provisions of the Company’s Articles of
Association and voting by members is by way of a separate
resolution. The Company will state the reason why the
relevant independent non-executive director who is subject
to rotation and re-election is still independent and should be
re-elected in the shareholders’ circular.

In view of the above, the Company considers that sufficient
measures have been taken to ensure that the standard of
the Company’s corporate governance practices is not lower
than those required in the CG Code.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code
of conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors
and established written guidelines no less exacting than the
Model Code for senior management and specified persons
who are likely to possess inside information in relation to the
Group.

Having made specific enquiry, all the directors confirmed that
they had complied with the required standards as set out in
the Model Code for the year ended 31 December 2017.

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Company’s corporate governance structure includes
the Board and three committees under the Board, namely
audit committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee. The Board stipulates the terms of reference for
all committees in writing and specifies clearly the power and
responsibilities of the committees.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board comprises four executive Directors, two non-
executive Directors, and four independent non-executive
Directors. Each of the non-executive Directors (including
the independent non-executive Directors) is appointed for
an unspecified term. Please refer to page 23 of this annual
report for composition of the Board.

Corporate Governance Report
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All independent non-executive Directors have complied with
the requirements of the Listing Rules and have submitted to
the Company annual confirmation of independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board has assessed
their independence and confirms that all independent non-
executive Directors are independent parties as defined in the
Listing Rules. Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung was appointed
on 16 March 1988, Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da was appointed
on 12 December 1994 and Mr. Ng Yiu Ming was appointed
on 2 July 2004 and Mr. Lo, Wilson Kwong Shun was
appointed on 1 January 2013. The appointment of Directors
is not fixed for a specified term, but they are subject to the
retirement and re-election requirements at every annual
general meeting pursuant to the Articles of Association.

The family relationship among the Directors is summarized
as follows:

Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae is the father of Mr. Wong,
Raymond Man Hin and uncle of Mr. Wong, John Ying Man
and Mr. Wong, David Ying Kit.

Mr. Wong, John Ying Man and Mr. Wong, David Ying Kit are
brothers and they are cousins of Mr. Wong, Raymond Man
Hin.

The Directors have conducted a review of the effectiveness
of the system of internal control of the Company and its
subsidiaries.

The Board convenes at least four regular meetings each
year, and will convene further meetings when necessary.
When a regular Board meeting is convened, the Board
documents will be sent to the Directors for review before
the meeting pursuant to the Listing Rules and the CG Code
so that the Directors can keep abreast of the information
to perform their duties and responsibilities. The Board
convened 4 meetings in 2017.
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The attendance of directors is as follows: EFHEBEROT :
Attendance Attendance
No. of Board No. of general
meetings attended/ meetings attended/
No. of Board No. of general
meetings held during meetings held during
term of service Attendance term of service Attendance
Director Name HEESEEENY/ Rate HERRASREY,/ Rate
EEL AHNESEERRY g ® EHRRRAEREY HE®
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae ML 4/4 100% il 100%
(Chairman) (/)
Mr. Wong, John Ying Man HRESE 4/4 100% 1/1 100%
Mr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin & X#@%E 4 4/4 100% 1/1 100%
Mr. Mok, Kin Hing RRELE 4/4 100% 11 100%
Non-Executive Directors FENITEE
Ms Li, Yinghong TR+ 2/4 50% 11 100%
(resigned 26 May 2017) (R 2017 %5 A 26 HEHT)
Mr. Xiong Zhengfeng BRIl 4/4 100% il 100%
Mr. Wong, David Ying Kit HRERE 4/4 100% 0/1 0%
Independent Non-Executive B/ FFH7E2F
Directors
Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung 2B 4 4/4 100% 11 100%
Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da BlELE 4/4 100% 0/1 0%
Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming it 4/4 100% 11 100%
Mr. Lo, Wilson Kwong Shun ~ ZEEL4E 4/4 100% 0/1 0%
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The remuneration of Directors is determined with reference
to their functions and responsibilities in the Company,
the performance of the Company and the current
market conditions. No Director is allowed to participate
in determining his own remuneration. The remuneration
received by Directors from the Company during the
year is set out in note 7 to the financial statements. The
Board has set up an independent professional consulting
procedure and upon reasonable request, Directors are able
to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at the Company’s expenses.

Apart from regular Board meetings, the chairman also held
meeting with independent non-executive Directors without
presence of executive Directors during the year.

All the Directors have participated in continuous professional
development, e.g. updated Listing Rules training, to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills provided by
the Group. The Company maintained the training records
received by each of the Directors in FY2017

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee comprises four independent non-
executive Directors with extensive experience in accounting
or legal matters. The audit committee was established with
specific written terms of reference, mainly responsible for
reviewing the financial statements and annual and interim
reports and accounts of the Company, submitting relevant
reports and recommendations to the Board, reviewing
the Company’s financial controls, internal control and risk
management systems and making recommendations on
the appointment and remuneration of the auditors of the
Company and any matters related to the termination of
appointment. Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung is chairman of
the audit committee and is responsible for reporting the
results and recommendations of the audit committee to the
Board after each meeting.
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In 2017, the audit committee convened 2 meetings.
Members of the audit committee and their attendance are
as follows:

Corporate Governance Report
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Attendance
No. of meetings
attended/

No. of meetings

held during the year Attendance
Member Name HEHESERE Rate
REAHE FHAERRE &
Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung (Chairman) RS 4 (F/&) 2/2 100%
Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da BlERE 2/2 100%
Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming HBRA A 2/2 100%
Mr. Lo, Wilson Kwong Shun BEERE 2/2 100%

Tasks undertaken by the audit committee during the year
included reviewing the 2016 audited financial statements
and the annual results announcement, reviewing the interim
report for the six months ended 30 June 2017 and the
interim results announcement, considering the accounting
standards adopted, reviewing the explanatory letter about
audit submitted by the auditors to the management and
the response of the management, the basis of opinion and
qualified opinion (if any) made by the auditors in their report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate risk
management and internal control system to manage risks
on an ongoing basis to reasonably safeguard the interests
of the Company’s shareholders and the Group’s assets.
In addition, there is regular dialogue with the Group’s
internal and external auditors so that both are aware of the
significant factors which may affect their respective scope of
work.

The Board has approved an “Inside Information Policy” in
May 2013 with the aim to set out guidelines to the directors,
officers and all relevant employees of the Company and its
subsidiaries to ensure Inside Information of the Company is
to be disseminated to the public in equal and timely manner
in accordance with the applicable laws and regulations. The
term “relevant employee” refers to employee of the Group,
because of his/her office or employment, who is likely to be
in possession of the unpublished Inside Information.
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The Group’s risk management includes regular identification
and review of business risks and control measures to
mitigate such risks. The Group internal control system
comprises of an established organizational structure as
well as comprehensive policies and standards. Area of
responsibilities of each business and functional unit is clearly
defined to ensure effective check and balance. Procedures
have been designed to safeguard assets from unauthorized
use or disposition, and to ensure that proper accounting
records are maintained and financial information used
internally and for publication is reliable. The internal control
procedures provide reasonable but not absolute assurance
against material errors, losses and fraud; but deem
sufficient to ensure full compliance with applicable laws and
regulations.

The audit committee and the Board carry out an
overview every six months on the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control system of the Group.
The review covers all material controls, including financial,
operational and risk controls. No material risk management
and internal control aspects of any significant discrepancies
were discovered during the review. Both the audit committee
and the Board expressed satisfaction over the effectiveness
and adequacy of both the internal control procedures and
risk management procedures for the year under review.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee comprises four independent
non-executive Directors and two executive Directors. The
remuneration committee was established with specific
written terms of reference, principally responsible for
reviewing and approving remuneration plans for directors
and senior management, determining the remuneration
package of executive directors and senior management,
including benefits, pension interests and the payment of
compensation. Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung is chairman
of the remuneration committee and is responsible for
reporting the meeting results and recommendations of the
remuneration committee to the Board after each meeting.
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In 2017, the remuneration committee convened 1 meeting.
Members of the remuneration committee and their
attendance are as follows:
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Attendance

No. of meetings attended/
No. of meetings

held during the year Attendance
Member Name HEHESE IS Rate
REEE FHAERRE HER
Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung (Chairman) 2RS4 (F/&) 1/1 100%
Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da BlERE 1/1 100%
Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming HBRA A 1/1 100%
Mr. Lo, Wilson Kwong Shun BEERE 1/1 100%
Mr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin BN AEAE 1/1 100%
Mr. Wong, John Ying Man EREHSTE 0/1 0%

Tasks undertaken by the remuneration committee
during the year included reviewing the remuneration
structure, remuneration policy and bonus system of the
Group, assessing performance of Executive Directors,
considering the salary adjustment for the year and making
recommendations to the Board. The remuneration
committee also ensures that no Director or senior
management member determines his own remuneration.

The remuneration policy of the Group is to determine the
remuneration of executive Directors and senior management
based on their responsibilities, qualifications and working
performance. No Director or any of his associates is
involved in deciding his own remuneration. The Company
has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to the
Directors, employees and other eligible participants. Details
of the share option scheme are set out in note 19 to the
financial statements.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee comprise four independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming (Chairman),
Mr. Leung. Michael Kai Hung, Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da and
Mr. Lo, Wilson Kwong Shun. The nomination committee is
to deal with the appointment, re-election and retirement of
Directors.
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The nomination committee consider that in terms of
professional experience, skill and knowledge and the
structure, size and composition of the Board, the present
members of the Board of the Company are generally in
line with the diversity policy of the Company concerning
board members, meeting the present situation and future
development plan of the Company.

In 2017, the nomination committee convened 2 meetings.
Members of the nomination committee and their attendance
are as follows:
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Attendance
No. of meetings attended/
No. of meetings

held during the year Attendance
Member Name HEHESERE Rate
REEHE FHAERRE &
Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming (Chairman) B EE (F/E) 2/2 100%
Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung PR ST 2/2 100%
Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da SECESAE 2/2 100%
Mr. Lo, Wilson Kwong Shun BEELE 2/2 100%
ROLES OF THE BOARD AND MANAGEMENT EEZ@8REEENAG

The Board is principally responsible for establishing the
development direction of the Group, formulating targets and
business development plans, approving major agreements
and matters, and monitoring the performances of senior
management. It is also responsible for corporate governance
with a view to enhance shareholders’ value. Led by the
three general managers, the management is responsible
for implementing the strategies and plans developed by the
Board.

The Company has developed a schedule of matters
reserved to the Board for decisions and has separately
identified those functions reserved to the Board. The Board
will review those arrangements on a regular basis to ensure
that the arrangements meet the needs of the Company.
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ROLES AND DUTIES OF CHAIRMAN AND
GENERAL MANAGER

The chairman and the general manager (equivalent to
chief executive officer) have different roles. The chairman is
responsible for the operation of the Board and the general
managers are responsible for managing the operations
of the Group. Their functions have been clearly divided to
ensure a balanced distribution of power and no authority will
concentrate on a single individual.

Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae, the chairman of the Board, is
principally responsible for leading the Board and ensures
the Board to act in the best interests of the Company. The
chairman ensures that the Board to operate effectively
and perform its proper duties and discuss all important
and proper matters in a timely manner. The chairman is
responsible for convening Board meetings, consulting,
determining and approving the agenda of each Board
meeting, and ensuring that Directors are provided sufficient
information on current matters in a timely manner. The
chairman oversees the structure, number of members and
composition of the Board and makes recommendations
to the Board and the relevant committees on any intended
changes. The chairman is also responsible for ensuring
that the Company formulates good corporate governance
practice and procedure.

Mr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin, the deputy executive
chairman, an executive Director and a general manager,
is principally responsible for the daily operation and
management of the Group’s overall operations and
implementing the Board’s operating strategy and policy
and delegating tasks to all departments for implementation
so as to realize the Board’s objectives and decisions. In
addition, he is also responsible for the Group’s financial
reporting, internal control, material procurement and control,
logistics, customs, taxes and legal matters and compliance,
coordinating close cooperation among all departments,
uniting efforts of staff and encouraging the initiative of staff
so as to ensure smooth and effective operation of the
Company’s operations and systems.
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Mr. Wong, John Ying Man, an executive Director and a
general manager, is principally responsible for the daily
operation and management of the Group’s overall operations
and implementing the Board’s operating strategy and policy
and delegating tasks to all departments for implementation
so as to realize the Board’s objectives and decisions. In
addition, he is also responsible for research & development,
production, quality assurance and new product innovations,
coordinating close cooperation among all departments,
uniting efforts of staff and encouraging the initiative of staff
so as to ensure smooth and effective operation of the
Company’s operations and systems.

Mr. Mok, Kin Hing, an executive Director and a general
managet, is principally responsible for the daily operation
and management of the Group’s overall operations and
implementing the Board’s operating strategy and policy and
delegating tasks to all departments for implementation so as
to realize the Board’s objectives and decisions. In addition,
he is also responsible for supervising all personnel issues
at our Nansha production facilities, all capital equipments
installation and disposal, and overseeing all employee
champions programs to optimize costs and make sure our
facilities are in full compliance with local, international and
environment laws and standards.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Article 95 of the Articles of Association, the
Board is entitled to appoint any person as Director from
time to time or at any time to fill a casual vacancy or add a
new member to the Board. For nomination, the nominee’s
qualifications, capabilities and potential to make contribution
to the Company shall be taken into consideration by the
nomination committee.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility in preparing
the financial statements of the Group.

The finance department of the Company is managed by
a qualified staff and supervised by executive Director and
general manager, Mr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin, who is
a U.S. certified public accountant. With the assistance
of the finance department, the Board will ensure that
the preparation of the financial statements of the Group
complies with relevant regulations and applicable accounting
standards.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration in respect of audit and non-audit services
(including review of interim financial information and tax
services) for the year ended 31 December 2017 provided
by Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited and its affiliate were
approximately HK$692,000, and HK$251,790 respectively.

The statement of reporting responsibility issued by Baker
Tilly Hong Kong Limited, the auditor of the Company, in
respect of the financial statements of the Group is set out in
the independent auditor’s report on pages 52 to 59.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has maintained communication with its
shareholders through the annual general meeting or other
general meetings and encourages them to participate in
general meetings. Registered shareholders of the Company
receive notices of general meetings by post. The notice
of general meeting contains the agenda, the proposed
resolutions and the voting form. All shareholders of the
Company are entitled to attend the annual general meeting
and special general meetings of the Company. Shareholders
who are unable to attend the general meeting can fill in the
proxy form attached with the notice of general meeting and
return the same to the share registrar and transfer office of
the Company so as to appoint their representatives or the
chairman of the meeting as their proxies.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHT

Right to convene an extraordinary general
meeting

Pursuant to Article 68 of the Articles of Association, an
extraordinary general meeting shall be convened on
requisition as provided by the Companies Ordinance or
by the requisitionist. The Directors are required to call a
general meeting if the Company has received requests from
shareholders of the Company representing at least 5% of
the total voting rights of all the shareholders having a right to
vote at general meetings.

Corporate Governance Report
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Right to put enquiries to the Board

Shareholders have the right to put enquiries to the Board. All
enquiries can be in writing and sent for the attention of the
Board, in one of the following ways:

1. By Post Raymond Industrial Limited
Rooms 1801-1813, 18th floor,
Grandtech Centre,

8 On Ping Street,

Shatin, New Territories

2. By facsimile  (852) 2341 8669

3. By email ril@rilhk.com

Procedures to put forward proposals at general
meetings

Shareholders who would like to put forward proposals at a
general meeting shall follow the procedures below.

Shareholders of the Company representing at least 2.5%
of the total voting rights of all the shareholders who have a
relevant right to vote or at least 50 shareholders who have a
relevant right to vote may request the Company to:

i) give notice of a resolution that may properly be
moved and is intended to be moved at the annual
general meeting of the Company; or

ii) circulate a statement of not more than 1,000 words
with respect to a matter mentioned in a proposed
resolution to be dealt with at a general meeting or
other business to be dealt with at the meeting;

to each shareholder of the Company entitled to receive
notice of the meeting.
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A request to give notice of a resolution must be received by
the Company not later than (i) 6 weeks before the annual
general meeting to which the request relates; or (i) if later,
the time at which notice is given of that meeting. A request
to circulate shareholders’ statement must be received by
the Company at least 7 days before the meeting to which it
relates. Such request may be sent to the Company in hard
copy form or in electronic form.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Lo, Wai Keung Eric (“Mr. Lo”) has been appointed as
the company secretary of the Company since 24 January
2014. Mr. Lo is responsible for ensuring that the Board
is fully appraised of the relevant corporate governance
developments relating to the Group and facilitating the
professional development of the directors.

Mr. Lo has received no less than 15 hours relevant
professional training during FY 2017.

Mr. Lo resigned as the company secretary of the Company
on 9 February 2018 and Ms. Liu Pui Yee was appointed as
the company secretary of the Company on 9 February 2018.

Corporate Governance Report
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BAKER TILLY
HONG KONG KB its

Independent auditor’s report to the members of
Raymond Industrial Limited

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Raymond Industrial Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages 60 to
135, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2017, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2017 and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the “Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements” section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
“Code”) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.
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The Key Audit Matter

RRETEE

Independent Auditor’s Report
B %A

How the matter was addressed in our audit

RN ET P MAEEEREEE

Impairment of trade receivables
BWE SRR

Refer to Note 2(g)(i) and 14 of the audited consolidated financial statements

BRI E A S EHENL2(0)0) K 14

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had significant trade
receivables of HK$194,209,000. No impairment has been
recognised during the year.

R2017F12A31H - BEXEEEXNERE FHEFEE
194,209,000 7T © F AT MI#ERREIE °

The management has to apply judgement to assess the
level of provisions required to adjust the value of trade
receivables to their recoverable amounts. The Group’s
credit risk policy requires analysis of individual receivable
account balances, taking into account receivables that are
past due for more than 1 year.

R PR - BN E SRR EEREER
e ER - BREAELAE - SREEERRK
REROHERIFEWARREATE - W E E@ AR 1 FaE
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The level of judgement involved in determining whether
a provision should be recognised and how it should be
measured, coupled with the fact that provision movements
impact earnings, results in this being one of the key
judgmental areas that our audit concentrated on.
EBERTRIELBERBERNM MY Lo EE
B BINEBEESTERN  SERREMANETE
) —{E AR A BT R -

Our audit procedures in this area included:

TS T E AR AZ 8245

o assessing the robustness of the management
impairment evaluation process and the adequacy of
the impairment of trade receivables;

A EREREMNGIEFESRE  UREKRES
ERNBEEESRE

° assessing the appropriateness of the Group’s
provisioning policy, with reference to the ageing
of the customer balances, economic conditions,
concentration of counterparty risk and the past
history of debt recovery; and
DERPEBMERR - LBERR - §FFRRKRES

MBEEBKEES - 7h EREBEBE 0 &
o reviewing subsequent settlement records and

challenging the management about their reasons
for not considering provisions against any unsettled
past-due balances.
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The Key Audit Matter
ARETSEE

The Group operates in an industry in which developments
in electrical home appliances may result in inventories
becoming slow moving or obsolete. Its customers may
modify their products orders or shift their orders to other
manufacturers which would result in changes in product
and stock lines. These factors, in turn, may mean that
relevant inventory cannot be sold or sales prices are
discounted to less than the inventory carrying value.

MR BEREQEMETE  KAESNBRAESHER
RFS B - B AIRENER:] B EEB E HAib
SUER GRS ERRTFEKTEL - MzEERATEE
EREF  HEFEEEHE  HEBTHNZEREFERE
B

The value of inventory as at 31 December 2017 was
HK$139,310,000 which is significant for the consolidated
statement of financial position. Further, a write-down
of inventories and reversal of previous write-downs of
inventories totaling HK$86,000 and HK$5,054,000
respectively were recognised during the year ended 31
December 2017.

201712 A31 B FE(EE /F¥ 139,310,000 7T

HIEEMBIRAEXMEREEK o LI BE2017F 12
RA31BIEFE - BHERTEMRE 86,000 7T k& D17
E# 5% 5,054,000 7T ©

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMWET P MM EEERASEE

Our audit procedures in this area included:

B mNEEF R

o assessing the appropriateness of the Group’s
methodology for determining its inventory provision
in the light of our understanding of the business and
the industry, including our professional judgement
of the age and nature of inventory, past usage and
new product launches;
ERHEMEEBRITENTR(BERMEFER
R ENF R  RERENREMEMR)

i BEEETTERENARTEY
o assessing the accuracy of inventory provisions by

examining the history or outcome of reversal of
previously recorded provisions;
REFAMARBBNEL SIEOER - SHEFEE
e EREE

o testing the carrying value of inventory by comparing
the carrying values to latest sales invoices for a
representative sample of items to assess whether
those items were held at the lower of cost or net
realisable value; and
RARAGFEREE  BFAARKMENFEROERS
MHEERER A ZEFER RN AEAE
REEPHOREEAE : &

o assessing the adequacy of the disclosures in
respect of management’s judgements used in
determining the carrying value of inventory.

A AHEEECETFERAEREANFE




The Key Audit Matter

RRETEE

Independent Auditor’s Report
B %A

How the matter was addressed in our audit

RN ET P MAEEEREEE

Revenue recognition

LN

Refer to Note 2(p) and 3 of the audited consolidated financial statements

BRI E A S EHEN 5 20) R 3

There is a risk that transactions completed just before and
just after the year end could be incorrectly recorded due to
a high volume of transactions close to the year-end date.
AR FRETARAERS FRARFRETHAZS
ATEE AR IEHE ©

The Group also has a number of customers who have a
variety of shipping terms which means that the transfer
of risks and rewards occurred on different timing bases
(such as on dispatch, on receipt at port of destination or on
receipt by customer). This means that there is an increased
risk that revenue may not be recognised in the correct
period for sales occurring near to the year end.
ERETAZEMERRTRANES EEREMELR
Efg Rk EHRERNREAEETR (MR EER - B B
AWESREFPKER) - EERE @ RBOFREENHE
MmE - WARTBER IE BRI FER A E bR A Prigin -

Our audit procedures in this area included:

TS T E AR AZ 8245

° selecting representative samples of transactions
recorded before and after year end for substantive
testing by reference to the trigger event for revenue,
when contractually the customer takes on the risks
and rewards of ownership, and tracing back to third
party carrier documentation and customers invoices
and/or agreements;
EENFRAEFENEERRENZZEARETT
FEMAR  2ZRABESG  BRPTEAHNLE
SRAEMER MBI SRR - WEPRZEFE =7
BREXHREPEER, Ui

o examining the numeric sequence of goods delivery
notes before and after year end and investigating
any apparent abnormalities; and
BEFRAERNEmESERTIERF - FAEIELATH
BHEE R

° conducting substantive analytical procedures on
the pattern of sales just before and just after year
end, including a comparison with the pattern in
prior years and corroborating the result of enquiries
with management about any unusual fluctuations in
sales.
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Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises chairman’s statement, five years
financial summary and management discussion and analysis
included in the annual report (but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon), which we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s
report, and the corporate information, corporate governance
report, report of the directors and biographical details of
directors and senior management, which is expected to be
made available to us after that date.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit,
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other
information that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s
report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of directors and those charged
with governance for the consolidated financial
statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

- |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

- Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

ER/G SR AT AR PO RE R I 0T AR - DA EEE
2T - EAMILHY BRERBEENER
HREEER -

AEESEMRASRRMEE LML &
A IR o

HEREAFELLEGHELENEE T - R (ERHR
MEMEFER) EEFEESFGRERE R
RERY BEEERELLEENELEARMANE
ATEEMBLES - WERMRB/FEERNTHE
EN BEERBMBETRBIBFAMBEE
MEREER (WZEBETR) BREMANER - &
PSR ERBREREMBE A PME SR E
e AR RRFHIMNAEER EREEX
FEKE -

AHERAMBREANERIR EEEAT 281
BREIGEWHERRELSRERAFIHROT AR
BRT HHRAR 5 R FE M o

ERER BERENERXEHLBNYBEND
AOBEENEFERE  NHEGEUBRREXRE
R ZMBEES  BBRETREER - RAD
AREBMNOFFBRAEZHLEE -

BRI (R B BRI R E MSHREEARER
(BRBMERETTEROAIIEHERRRE) 2AFA R
NBIE




We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Tong Wai Hang.

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 28 March 2018

Tong Wai Hang
Practising Certificate Number PO6231
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2016

Note HK$’000
FiaE BT T

Revenue LON 3 1,019,442
Cost of sales SHERA (863,704)
Gross profit EA 155,738
Other revenue E A A 4 1,220
Other net income E At F Uz 4 633
Selling expenses HEEMA (11,846)
General and administrative —M AT E A

expenses (73,041)
Profit from operations e m 5 72,704
Finance costs U %N 5(a) -
Profit before taxation BB AR R 72,704
Income tax Frig i 6 (21,693)
Profit for the year and KA TR RIEL

attributable to equity AF R F

shareholders

of the Company 51,011
Earnings per share BREF 9
Basic, HK cents A A 10.66
Diluted, HK cents #E - B 10.54

Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of the BEERAN AT EEFESEN 2EEFBEAIN 2REF
Company attributable to the profit for the year are set out in ~ 1BE T 5E20(0) °
note 20(b).

#

The notes on pages 67 to 135 form part of the consolidated &

67 BEEF 135 B Wik AR SiRE M HHRE 2
financial statements. —EB15 o
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

(For the year ended 31 December 2017)

SEeBEERHEMZERSR
(BZ2017 612 531 HILFE)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(UBEREN)
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Profit for the year FEEF 36,462 51,011
Other comprehensive FEHME2HEWE
income/(loss) for the year (B#R) :
ltem that may be reclassified 2B RERENGE
subsequently to profit or loss: HIEE
— Exchange differences on - MBS INE TSR B IS
translation of financial EAEREN ZFE - |EIE
statements of foreign 2 FE
operations, net of nil tax 21,048 (16,808)
Total comprehensive income EATBRRELMFEZ
for the year and attributable EHNREEE
to equity shareholders
of the Company 57,510 34,203

The notes on pages 67 to 135 form part of the consolidated

financial statements.
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Note
b
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment WE - B RE 11
Interests in leasehold land held for RIBGEHEEREERZ
own use under operating leases bR 11
Deferred tax assets BB E 12(b)
Current assets REEE
Inventories & 13
Trade and other receivables B 5 R H A W ARIE 14
Tax recoverable AR EFRIR 12(a)
Cash and cash equivalents B MReEEIEBER 15
Current liabilities RBEME
Trade and other payables B REMEMNIRE 16
Dividends payable FERTRR S
Tax payable FERTFR IR 12(a)
Net current assets MREEEFE
Total assets less current liabilities #AEERREEE
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities RAERIBEE 12(b)
NET ASSETS EEFEE
CAPITAL AND RESERVES ERRHE
Share capital [N 20(a)
Other reserves H
TOTAL EQUITY B

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors

on 28 March 2018.

Wilson Wong Kin Lae
A
Director

EF

The notes on pages 67 to 135 form part of the consolidated

financial statements.
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Raymond Wong Man Hin
BEXRE
Director

EF

2016
HK$'000
AT

145,331

7,251
4,910

157,492

116,011
235,024

541
251,634

603,210

173,427
336
14,742

188,505
414,705

572,197

308

571,889

448,167
123,722

571,889
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
(For the year ended 31 December 2017)

SERERER

(BZ2017 612 531 HILFE)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LB REN)
PRC
Share  Exchange Capital Retained statutory Total
capital reserve reserve earnings reserve equity
B BN BB REEN HEEERE EHE o
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

(i A¥TT  A¥Tn BETr B%Tn AT AETn

At 1 January 2016 120161 B 1 AL 445,821 48,927 3,488 31,347 34,810 564,393
Changes in equity for 2016: 2016 2 B&= 2 8):
Profit for the year RER R - - - 51,011 - 51,011
Exchange differences on RESNEBHTE

translation of financial BREANELZE

statements of foreign operations - (16,308) - - - (16,308)
Total comprehensive income FERENGEE - (16,808) - 51,011 - 34,203
Appropriation to PRC HEEERERR

statutory reserve - - - (434) 434 -
Dividends approved in respect of ~ #LER S
— current year -KF 20(0)() - - - (9,597) - (9,597)
— previous year -fiE 20(0)(i) - - - (19,150) - (19,150)

Shares issued under share option
scheme

BRTZ BRER D

- gross proceeds - Eha 20(a)(i) 2,040 - - - - 2,040
~transfer from capital reserve - EAREEY 306 - (306) - - -
Cancellation of share options BB RE - - (152) 152 - -

2306 (16,808) wse 21,98 434 7,496
At 31 December 2016 R2016 F 12 A 31 B4 448,167 32,119 3,030 53,329 35,244 571,889

R FFHR NREEXARAR 63



PRC

Share  Exchange Capital Retained statutory Total
capital reserve reserve earnings reserve equity
RA& EifE EXGE REEN DEEERE Bt
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Wiz BB BETT AR BETT BETT BETT
At 1 January 2017 H201751 51 AER
Changes in equity for 2017: 2017 £ 2 EHEH
Proft for the year REERT
Exchange differences on BERINERRET
translation of financial RREEREREE
statements of foreign operations
Total comprehensive income FEREERES
Appropriation to PRC FEZEREER
statutory reserve
Dividends approved in respect of ~ BERR &
— current year 3 20(0)0)
~ previous year - 20(b)(i)
Shares issued under share option B %172 B IER (7
scheme
- gross proceeds - EhE 20(a)(i)
—transfer from capital reserve - HAKREER
At 31 December 2017 R2017E12 A 31 A&

The notes on pages 67 to 135 form part of the consolidated %,

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
(For the year ended 31 December 2017)
HEEERER
(BZ2017 612 531 HILFE)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AR REN)
2017 2016
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
BisE BT T BT
Operating activities ReETE
Profit before taxation BB AT A 46,445 72,704
Adjustments for: FE
— Amortisation of interests in - R IR S BT ERE
leasehold land held for own Bz TR
use under operating leases 5(c) 386 393
— Depreciation -E 5(c) 26,928 33,469
— Finance costs — BATERR AR 5(a) 198 -
— Foreign exchange loss/(gain), net - [EH R 18, (W) 7,826 (6,349)
— Interest income - B A 4 (1,208) (1,220)
— Net loss on disposal of - HEWE - BER
property, plant and equipment R FEE 4 1,032 989
— (Reversal of write-down)/ - (E&®E),
write-down of inventories, net HREFEEE (4,968) (715)
Operating profit before changes EEESBRBAIKE SRR
in working capital 76,639 99,271
Increase in inventories EINFE (18,331) (2,960)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and wmAL (M) B SRk
other receivables H e Y IR IR 20,555 (27,019)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and #n Gl ) B Rk
other payables E e ARIA 21,920 (257)
Cash generated from operations KEE4LCRE 100,783 69,035
Tax paid: A
- Hong Kong Profits Tax paid - FEAENGEHZ L (1,448) (1,133)
- PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid - RIS S T (18,373) (10,838)
Net cash generated from RETHEEZEHSFE
operating activities 80,962 57,064
Investing activities REEE
Payment for the purchase of SEEmE -
property, plant and equipment R K &4 (38,486) (22,728)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME  BMEK
plant and equipment RABPTISEIA 1,109 357
Interest received MEKA 1,208 1,220
Net cash used in investing RETEBZHZ
activities REFE (36,169) (21,151)

R FFHR NREEXARAR
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Note
FaE
Financing activities REEE
Proceeds from shares issued BITHBRERD
under share option scheme & 20(a)(ii)
Interest paid XAAFE
Dividends paid XAARE
Net cash used in financing mMETHTHZ
activities REFEE
Increase in cash and EMRERREEE
cash equivalents EHE
Cash and cash equivalents M1A1HZEER
at 1 January H&ZEIER
Effect of foreign exchange SN FE RS B 2 &
rate changes
Cash and cash equivalents R12A31BZRER
at 31 December H&ZEEER 15

The notes on pages 67 to 135 form part of the consolidated

financial statements.

2016
HK$'000
AT

2,040

(28,615)

(26,575)

9,338

244,472

(2,176)

251,634
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

| COMPANY INFORMATION

Raymond Industrial Limited (the “Company”) is a company
incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong and has its
registered office and principal place of business at Rooms
1801-1813, 18th Floor, Grandtech Centre, 8 On Ping Street,
Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong.

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(2)

The consolidated financial statements for year ended 31
December 2017 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”).

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong. These financial statements also comply with the
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
These financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

R B F &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(B REN)

| NEIER
FREEARAR(ARAT ) REBEMAL - ARG
PR N FE B IR B AP A A8 R EES
[>1811801-1813F °

2 FESHEE
) GHREH

HZE2017F12 AN AL FEZEAUEHRERBIEART]
NEMBAR (5E [&E®E]) Z26KE -

hEGRAVBRENDBREFEEAZESY K HREEL
((BEBHBMEER RS - LABAZRIES S S
R ((EREHMAL ) BEH2MEER 2 ERE MG
XA BB GHER([FBEHEY ) RRE &5
RREHRURBEBRUEO 2 HBERTE - WELREHB
BERNFTEBEBRERIMERARFRF EMHRAZEA
PERIEST °
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(@) Statement of compliance (Continued)

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption for
the current accounting period of the Group and the
Company. Note 2(c) provides information on any changes in
accounting policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that are relevant to the Group for
the current and prior accounting periods reflected in these
consolidated financial statements.

A summary of significant accounting policies adopted by the
Group is set out below.

(b) Basis of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements is the historical cost basis.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

2 EESHEE@®

(@ BREH®SB

BEGMASCEM - LHREERTEEY B REE
8 RARBERARR ZEMETHEERERRARE
R o 220 REARARER S BERE S M
ERERAFEARNTBERROER

AEERAZENGTTBRBERIIILOT

(b) FEMBHRERZFEHELE

B Nr A SRR TRA Z S EEE QT LA RE

RETATEMBREEN 2GR BEHRE - BEREERE
RAFERREAUREEREE BWARRAXZEZ2HE
BB A - At BRR - ARG MABERRIREE
E&E ARZEERBEATHEBAE ZEMAEME
H FEERBREREERMEN KRBT ZEERE
B REEFEDL A 2R -  ERARTEEABMGA
PN -

ARREFEH A RABRRAETHE - WREGEHAE
CENEFEZNME MERTESEM 2 E MEE
R AMRABFERG T EANREIARKEE - ERATE
AR5 i AR Ko AR SR EARRI R




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements (Continued)

Judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements and major sources of estimation
uncertainty are discussed in note 27.

(9)

The HKICPA has issued a number of amendments to
HKFRSs that are first effective for the current accounting
period of the Group. None of these developments have had
a material effect on how the Group’s result and financial
position for the current or prior periods have been prepared
or presented.

Changes in accounting policies

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period (see note 28).

(d)

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. When assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other parties) are
considered.

Subsidiaries

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances and transactions and any unrealised profits
arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full in
preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent
that there is no evidence of impairment.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
losses (see note 2(g)(ii).

R B F &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(B REN)

2 FESEBE @)

(b) AREMBE®RRZmEIELE (@)

EREERAEEVBREER 2 H B H NS MoK R
HETAEAFHE 2 EREBRAENE27 it -

() BFBXREH

EAGHASC Y ALBRTEHHEERAERNEB
M MELRAETTE T - ELBRELAEHAEE
IR A BT AR O BB AR A IR B &

=245
= °

ANEBAERS S HAR KRR TR LB FER 2 12 (Bt
$¥08) o

(d MELF

MEAR AR EEZES 2 A5 - REBERZEH —F§E
BT Z BT =8 TR [ 564 1) =k @ b &8 F A2
HEATELDRERE - EERAKERE BTG EER
BXrERs (FEERAEMALTER)

HIB AR R ENRA R GIE R RS ARSI BHR
= HEZRIEWERLERIE - AEERERZEHMR
HREELZEARER N - HERBIGRS M HRRE
2HHEE - ERAREERCHRREZBERLT  AEHE
AR HAELZ REHREER - SRAERWEAR 2T
R

RARRZMBARREKA - KK B R F 2R ERKAR &
RERREAR (RHFE2())) °

R FFHR NREEXARAR

69



2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e) Property, plant and equipment

[tems of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see
note 2(g)(ii)).

The cost of construction in progress includes the cost of
machinery, materials, construction expenditures and other
costs directly attributable to bringing the assets to a working
condition for its intended use.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment are determined as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised in profit or
loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
value, if any, over their estimated useful lives at the following
annual rates:

Buildings held for own use which are
situated on leasehold land, where the
fair value of the building could be
measured separately from the fair value
of the leasehold land at the inception of
the lease (see note 2(f)(i))

Plant and machinery

Furniture, fixtures and equipment

Motor vehicles

4.0% - 4.5% straight line

9.0% - 18.0% straight line

9.0% - 33.3% straight line

25.0% reducing balance
and 18.0% straight line

Construction in progress is not depreciated until it is
completed and ready for its intended use.

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any,
are reviewed annually.

2 EESHEE@®

(e) W% BEERE

W - WERREEB RN RERETE RREEET
B (RHIEE2(9)) °

ERTIERABERS  MH EERBAREMERDE
EREEERBMEERMA

BEIHENE BELMREMELZEERNEELE
PRSIRFREREE M ZRET  LERBEXIHE
2 RAEBRENER -

ME - BEMREBZTELEMREGHRE(WNE) RIR
TATERTAMERFRETE -

AR RS 2 ATE
EEREEE NENEEL

BEEE4.0% - 4.5%

v BREE
(RBRE M)
BV HE%£9.0% - 18.0%
B - BB REE B5%9.0% - 33.3%
AE 25.0% HEERER
B%518.0%

FERIEBIAEEE TR EAIHER -

BENAERFHRRRER 18 E8FETR °




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

() Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset
or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment
or a series of payments. Such a determination is made
based on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement
and is regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal
form of a lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group
Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership are classified as being held under finance
leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the Group are classified
as operating leases, except where the land held for own
use under an operating lease, the fair value of which cannot
be measured separately from the fair value of a building
situated thereon, is accounted for as being held under a
finance lease, unless the building is also clearly held under
an operating lease. For these purposes, the inception of the
lease is the time that the lease was first entered into by the
Group, or taken over from the previous lessee.

(i) Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease
is amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of the
lease term of 50 years. Impairment losses are recognised in
accordance with accounting policy set out in note 2(g)(ii).

R B F &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(B REN)

2 FESEBE @)

H HEEE
AEBEEE HEABEHERRANBBIN —FH— T
FRAMERR B EEEXSZREE RN - Rl (H
—RRPHRIIRZENK) RHERBEEE - REE S
REBHZ L ZERBFEMEL  MAREZLHEEEE
BB RER -

() HEFEEEMzEEIE
AEERBEHOKEZEE  WREAB M AR LKEEE
NMamEBEAKREZHAY  AENEEESIRSRE
HERE - MRTERAKEERB RS0 Ak A #E
Mamz B EREETHEE  URLHERFEREE
FEHEERKBERAPEEREEE FRZREY 2
FESFHFER  MeRREREMEREZMEIIK -
BERMALERERBONREYRI - SLAFRB BN
5 RMEZRBEE AR L ABEORERARE
NE YRR

(i) KEHEZH
AREBRNELTHERSEENFERE  HHEENTHE
BHBEESHRENS A RNESTHER  BRIFEH
R E B R A EEEMELNKRSER -
ERTH RS REENRA S EBE P ERAREFMNK
BENAEKSD - AEHRSEHEAN ST HRIAERZ
FRRERR o

NEEHERE L HNRBRRNABRENEER0FA
B3 o RUERBEBRES T BORMEE 2(0)(i) #E:7 ©
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(g) Impairment of assets
(i) Impairment of trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables that are stated at cost or
amortised cost are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to determine whether there is objective evidence
of impairment. Objective evidence of impairment includes
observable data that comes to the attention of the Group
about one or more of the following loss events:

significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; and

- significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an adverse
effect on the debtor.

If such evidence exists, any impairment loss is determined
and recognised. The impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the
effective interest rate computed at initial recognition of these
assets), where the effect of discounting is material. This
assessment is made collectively where these financial assets
share similar risk characteristics, such as similar past due
status, and have not been individually assessed as impaired.
Future cash flows for financial assets which are assessed
for impairment collectively are based on historical loss
experience for assets with credit risk characteristics similar
to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised,
the impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss. A
reversal of an impairment loss shall not result in the asset’s
carrying amount exceeding that which would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior
years.

2 EESHEE@®

(@ EERE
() EZREMIFRRE
5 REMKRAREKAEIEFENAEREREPRRE

Bl DT EGEFEBREERE  FENESEEEAS
BSAR N R ZHEBREAEN A BRMUR

- ERANBBE RIS EE ;
- B BIERSEAINBEEARS

- BEEAAEEE SWESETEMIHESR &

]

- B M5 RESVEARRENSEAZ BN HEY
NIRRT E

WEEMZEREFE  EEETREERRER - RE
ERRNEE 7 IR E RIR I 5 E E R K ERF X (B
RERZEEBERFEZBERFIE) IR (MR HEEK
BEANFR)NEFARRSRREANEHNE - 02
BEEEGRUNEREE - FlInBELAEEER kIR
BERWEARE MERNFEERKBET eREE
MARRESREGRBERZEEEABRUEERREFE
BEMNBEBERBRIA—RFERE

IR EEBRRERBER D - MEE LR EBREER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment of assets (Continued)
(i) Impairment of trade and other receivables
(Continued)

Impairment losses are written off against the corresponding
assets directly, except for impairment losses recognised
in respect of trade debtors, whose recovery is considered
doubtful but not remote. In this case, the impairment losses
for doubtful debts are recorded using an allowance account.
When the Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the
amount considered irrecoverable is written off against trade
debtors directly and any amounts held in the allowance
account relating to that debt are reversed. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously charged to the allowance
account are reversed against the allowance account.
Other changes in the allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off directly are
recognised in profit or loss.

(i) Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period to identify indications
that the following assets may be impaired or an impairment
loss previously recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

- property, plant and equipment;

- pre-paid interests in leasehold land classified as
being held for own use under operating leases; and

- investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s
statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount
is estimated.

R B F &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(B REN)

2 FESEBE @)

@ EEREM®R)

() EZRAEMHKEREGE)

BEBREAENEETERME  EEEE SRR
K E M IR R EERTE - R E AR R R AR
R A RE MR RIPISN - FEERIBR T - AR ERR
FCERRIR AR R (E BT 1R o s 7 5% 18] B 52 RE U 100 FE M RR SR A
AR ERER - AIRATARESESEREE SRR N
EUREETEERE MERBRTHAEEEZEFNE
ML BERAER - FZATABBRIFUREERZKE - A
MHEARN R ESRERD - BEROEMEE N2 A HEEME
MmERKEEFIA - HEBREARER

(i) HEREEE
RIS BB ES EREHREN - N TIIE
EATHBAENE - R R A E R BT G

YESN T E

BNEE DR D AR EEHES

i)
ol

EMBANK P BARIE -

MRBREIMBETR  BSETEEATRESHE -
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(g) Impairment of assets (Continued)
(ii) Impairment of other assets (Continued)
- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely independent of those
from other assets, the recoverable amount is determined
for the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

- Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if the
carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-generating unit
to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-generating
units are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
assets in the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis,
and then, to reduce the carrying amount of other assets in
the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis, except that
the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable) or
value in use (if determinable).

- Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount. A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the
asset’s carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses are credited to profit or loss
in the year in which the reversals are recognised.

2 EESHEE@®
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h) Inventories
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula
and comprises all cost of purchases, cost of conversion
and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and all
losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the
period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any
reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognised as
a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

(i)

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair
value and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts (see note 2(g)(i)), except where the receivables
are interest-free loans made to related parties without any
fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at cost
less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts.

@)
Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value
are subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect

of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other payables

R B F &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k)  Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having
been within three months of maturity at acquisition.

()  Employee benefits

(i) Short term employee benefits and contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present values.

Contributions to mandatory provident fund as required
under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance and to retirement benefit schemes for the
employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”) are recognised as an expense
in profit or loss as incurred.

(i) Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within equity (see note 2(m)).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(m)

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions

The Company operates a share option scheme under which
the Group receives services or goods from its directors,
employees and other eligible persons as consideration for
share options of the Company. The fair value of the services
or goods received in exchange for the grant of the share
options is recognised as an expense. The total amount to
be expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of
the share options, which is measured at grant date using
the Black Scholes model, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted. Where
the counterparties have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to the options, the total
estimated fair value of the options is spread over the vesting
period, taking into account the probability that the options
will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options that
is expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to
the cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is charged/
credited to profit or loss for the year of the review, unless
the original expenses qualify for recognition as an asset,
with a corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve.
On vesting date, the amount recognised as an expense is
adjusted to reflect the actual number of options that vest
(with a corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve)
except where forfeiture is only due to not achieving vesting
conditions that relate to the market price of the Company’s
shares. The equity amount is recognised in the capital
reserve until either the option is exercised which included in
the amount recognised in share capital for the shares issued
or the option expires (when it is released directly to retained
earnings).
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n)  Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax
are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and
unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in
the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss
arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or
forward. The same criteria are adopted when determining
whether existing taxable temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax
losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a period,
or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n)  Income tax (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets
and liabilities are those temporary differences arising from
the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of
a business combination), and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case
of taxable differences, the Group controls the timing of
the reversal and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in the
future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
the end of the reporting period and is reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised.
Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of
dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the related
dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against
deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the following additional conditions
are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n)  Income tax (Continued)

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected
to be settled or recovered, intend to realise
the current tax assets and settle the current
tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.

(o) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group or the Company has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditure
expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

P)

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue
and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is
recognised in profit or loss as follows:

Revenue recognition

(i) Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when goods are delivered at the
customers’ premises which is taken to be the point in time
when the customer has accepted the goods and the related
risks and rewards of ownership. Revenue excludes value
added tax or other sales taxes and is after deduction of any
trade discounts.

(i) Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

(a)

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and
losses are recognised in profit or loss. Non-monetary assets
and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in
a foreign currency are translated using the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates.

Translation of foreign currencies

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Statement of financial position items are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the closing foreign exchange rates ruling
at the end of the reporting period. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in equity in the exchange
reserve.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(q) Translation of foreign currencies (Continued)

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount
of the exchange differences relating to that foreign operation
is reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the profit or
loss on disposal is recognised.

(r)  Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantive period of time to get ready
for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost
of that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the
period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of
a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the
asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially
all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for
its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.

(s)  Product development costs

Expenditure on development activities, whereby research
findings are applied to a plan or design for the production
of new or substantially improved products and processes,
is capitalised if the product or process is technically and
commercially feasible and the Group has sufficient resources
and the intention to complete development. The expenditure
capitalised includes the costs of materials, direct labour
and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Development
expenditure is recognised as an expense in the period in
which it is incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Related parties

A person, or a close member of that person’s family,
is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control of the Group;
(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or
(iii) is a member of the key management

personnel of the Group or the Group’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

(ii) One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (i).
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(t) Related parties (Continued)
(b) (Continued)

(vi) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity).

(vii)  The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

(u)  Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the consolidated financial statements, are
identified from the financial information provided regularly
to the Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments
have similar economic characteristics and are similar in
respect of the nature of products and services, the nature
of production processes, the type or class of customers,
the methods used to distribute the products or provide
the services, and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually material may
be aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B F &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(B REN)
3 REVENUE 3 N
The principal activities of the Group are the manufacture and ~ ANEE X EEHEREERHERAESS o
sale of electrical home appliances.
Revenue represents the sales value of goods supplied to  WAREELTF ZHEE - KRN - RERIGEH X
customers, net of discounts, returns and value added tax or ~ EASHERL ©
other sales taxes.
4  OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET 4 HMWARFKE
INCOME
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Other revenue Hipug A
Bank interest income RITHBHA 1,208 1,220
Other net income Hih g
Gain on disposal of scrap materials HEE RIS 1,010 865
Net exchange gain/(loss) & B ES (B518) 2,747 918)
Net loss on disposal of LEME  BMEK
property, plant and equipment HREFEE (1,032) (989)
Sample sales income E g 632 1,306
Subsidy income L 1,036 402
Sundry income/(loss) Habdas (&i18) 839 (33)
5,232 633
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5

Profit before taxation is arrived after charging:

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

5 BREADEF

BRI A A TS HIRR T 2B IRRIZEL

(a)  Finance costs: (a)  BAEEEA
Interest on invoice financing BEFEF S
(b)  Staff costs (including b) EERXT(BEESEH:
directors’ remuneration (MIsE7))
(note 7))
Salaries, wages and other benefits e ITEREAMER
Discretionary bonuses BIS B AR TEAL
Contributions to defined EHHEFERR S FHEIH K
contribution retirement plans
()  Otheritems () H#ER
Cost of inventories sold HEFERAK
(note 13(b))* (F7E13(0)) *
Amortisation of interests in HIERIBCETNERE
leasehold land held for Bz TR
own use under
operating leases
Depreciation e
Auditor’'s remuneration Z SR &
Product development costs EmERNA

Cost of inventories includes HK$154,129,000 (2016:
HK$182,135,000) relating to staff costs and depreciation,
which amounts are also included in the respective total
amounts disclosed separately above or in note 5(b) for each

of these types of expenses.

2016
HK$'000
AT

165,248
6,286

17,329

188,863

863,704

393
33,469
692
3,105

# HETERAEBIEERARITE BB 154,129,000 7T
(2016 4F : /¥ 182,135,0007T) * ZEEIMEBER Liatsa

SERMFESO) ERIRESRERAERHE -




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iR B M &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AR REN)
6 INCOMETAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 6 #REBERRZAEBH
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(@)  Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or  (a) REFEBERREYZTIA
loss represents:
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Current tax - Hong Kong REERIE - EBHREH
Profits Tax
Provision for the year (note 12(a)) IR (FisE12(0) 3,291 2,162
Over-provision in respect of TEERERS
prior years - (20
3,291 2,142
Current tax - PRC Enterprise REEHIE - PELEMSEH
Income Tax
Provision for the year (note 12(a)) ARFERAE (F5E12(a)) 7,298 11,919
(Over)/under-provision in respect TFERECRZ) B
of prior years (923) 4,366
6,375 16,285
Deferred tax R
Origination and reversal of BRI ERERNEER
temporary differences # o (F1sE12(0))
(note 12(b) 317 3,266
Income tax expense BB 9,983 21,693
(i The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated (i) BANEHIRBARFEE G ERT B AKX

at 16.5% (2016: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable

profits for the year.

(ii) Taxation of the PRC subsidiary is calculated using (i)
the applicable income tax rate of 25% (2016: 25%).

16.5% (2016 & : 16.5%) J2 R A4 -

R EIR KB A R BRIRIR A S B & 256% (2016 4F -

25%) T & -

T FFR IREXAR

N
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6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 6
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

(Continued)

(b) Reconciliation between income tax expense and  (b)
accounting profit at the applicable tax rates:

RERBRRZAEHR @

R AEN GBS M R g

Profit before taxation

B 1t A it A1)

Notional tax on profit before
taxation, calculated at the
rates applicable to profits in
the jurisdictions concerned

Tax effect of non-deductible
expenses

Tax effect of non-taxable income

Effect of temporary differences
not recognised

(Over)/under-provisions in respect of
prior years, net

RERBEERRERFEZ
R AT S F B &R A
TAHIBR R Z RS &

FRRTMAZ RIGTE
MR 2 MG E

EEEFREGRZ) B

Actual tax expense

BEBRBIAS

2016
HK$’000
BT

72,704

16,651

1,753
(1,078)

21
4,346

21,693




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

7 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 383(1)
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the
Companies (Disclosure of information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation are as follows:

R B F &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(B REN)

7 EEMe

EESRIBEECR FUERNE 381(1) ik R A &l <F Al #B5 2
WEEWT

Salaries,
allowances
and benefits Discretionary  Retirement
Directors’ in kind bonuses scheme
Year ended 31 December 2017 fees e Ef contributions Total
Z2017512R31AEEL e EMRERN  BR2EAL  RAEHX &t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T BETT BT T BRI
Executive directors YTES
Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae BRFRE(FE)

(Chairman) 200 7 260 - 467
Mr. Wong, John Ying Man HRGSE 170 3,798 365 240 4,573
Mr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin BENBAE 170 3,607 465 300 4,542
Mr. Mok, Kin Hing RRELE 150 1,950 240 122 2,462
Non-executive directors FETES
Mr. Xiong, Zhengfeng BRIFIE LA 150 - - - 150
Ms. Li, Yinghong ZRRAT/NE

(resigned on 26 May 2017) (R 201745 A 26 HEHT) 60 - - - 60
Mr. Wong, David Ying Kit HREEE 150 - - - 150
Independent non-executive BYFHTES

directors
Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung PR E 210 - - - 210
Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da BIEEE 210 - - - 210
Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming MRALE 210 - - - 210
Mr. Lo, Wilson Kwong Shun BEELE 210 - - - 210
Alternate director REZS
Mr. Zhang, Yuankun SRS AE - 157 - - 157

1,890 9,519 1,330 662 13,401

T LEER AREXARAR
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7  DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued) 7  EEM& (®)

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 383(1)  EE & RIZEEBCA FUERHI NS 381(1) & XA R ST RIS S 2
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the ~ #EEaAT : (48)
Companies (Disclosure of information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation are as follows: (continued)
Salaries,
allowances
and benefits  Discretionary Retirement
Directors’ in kind bonuses scheme
Year ended 31 December 2016 fees e & contributions Total
Z2016F12AN AEEL we  EMRER  BRZEL BREER A&t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT AT AT AT AT

Executive directors BTEE
Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae BRAEE

(Chairman) () 200 9 200 - 409
Mr. Wong, John Ying Man BRERAE 170 3,914 300 240 4,624
Mr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin BENBRAE 170 3,249 300 300 4,019
Mr. Mok, Kin Hing RR@ErE 150 1,862 200 122 2,334
Non-executive directors FHITES
Mr. Xiong, Zhengfeng BRFIBSAE 150 - - - 150
Ms. Li, Yinghong FHAT/NME 150 - - - 150
Mr. Wong, David Ying Kit EES 150 - - - 150

Independent non-executive BYFHTES

directors
Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung RS 210 - - - 210
Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da BLERAE 210 - - - 210
Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming HRRTE 210 - - - 210
Mr. Lo, Wilson Kwong Shun BEERAE 210 - - - 210
Alternate director RES
Mr. Zhang, Yuankun SRTHL A - 160 - - 160

1,980 9,194 1,000 662 12,836
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8 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, three
(2016: three) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed
in note 7. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the
other two (2016: two) individuals are as follows:

R B F &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(B REN)

8 fERZRSHMAL

AEESUZRSHFMALHEEIAM (20164 : 3f)EF
WEZMECENMEET - T 26 (2016 F : 2fL) ZRE#H
AL ZBE AT

2017 2016

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T BT T

Salaries and other emoluments & R H A B 1,335 1,323
Discretionary bonuses [NEEErersl 202 170
Retirement scheme contributions RIRE R 133 119
1,670 1,612

The emoluments of the other two (2016: two) individuals
with the highest emoluments are within the following band:

AR Z = E A T 20 (2016 4F : 2iL) BHEABRIDITAT

Number of individuals

AE
2017 2016
HKS$NIl — HK$1,000,000 B T 2 8% 1,000,000 7T 2 2
9 EARNINGS PER SHARE 9 BRER
(a) Basic earnings per share @) BREFEF

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of
HK$36,462,000 (2016: HK$51,011,000) and the weighted
average number of 483,500,000 (2016: 478,738,000)
ordinary shares in issue during the year, calculated as
follows:

FRERBR ZERARD B PR B KL ERTF
7 136,462,000 7T (2016 4F = 7 # 51,011,000 7T ) & 1R
BFE A2 B 17 I F 19 IR 483,500,000 (2016 4F :
478,738,000) LA E -

R FFHR NREEXARAR
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9 EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)

(@) Basic earnings per share (Continued)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

9 BREMN®E

(@ BREXBFE)

ZERNETIRE

2016

'000
T

1 A1BE#ET
TR

Issued ordinary shares at 1 January
Effect of share options exercised
(note 20(a)(ii)

LE A
228 (B3 20(a)(i))

477,392

1,346

Weighted average number of
ordinary shares at 31 December

W12 A31 B Z B BB nHEF R

478,738

(b) Diluted earnings per share

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on the
profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of
HK$36,462,000 (2016: HK$51,011,000) and the weighted
average number of 489,261,000 (2016: 484,028,000)
ordinary shares, calculated as follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted)

(b) EBREHERF

BREERR 2 A E R UAD R R B 22555
# 36,462,000 7T (2016 £F « &% 51,011,000 7T) M g 15
A% 2% 489,261,000 (2016 £F : 484,028,000) Ei@AXHH -

ERERMEF I RE (8E)

2016
'000
T

Weighted average number of
ordinary shares at 31 December

il S alive

Effect of deemed issue of shares

under the Company’s REBIEBEITRM 2
share option scheme for nil 2 (FE19)

consideration (note 19)

M2 A1 Bz E@mR>

REBEARRIBRETEIAT

478,738

5,290

Weighted average number of
ordinary shares (diluted)
at 31 December

W12 A31 B Z &Rz
AR (H5E)

484,028




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

[0 SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and
sale of electrical home appliances. In a manner consistent
with the way in which information is reported internally
to the Group’s senior management for the purposes of
resource allocation and performance assessment, the Group
has identified six reportable segments on a geographical
basis: Japan, the United States, the PRC, Europe, Asia
(excluding Japan and the PRC) and rest of the world. The
electrical home appliances are manufactured in the Group’s
manufacturing facilities located in the PRC. The “rest of the
world” segment covers sales of electrical home appliances
to customers in Australia, Canada, South America and
Africa.

(@)

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group’s senior
executive management monitors the results, assets and
liabilities attributable to each reportable segment on the
following bases:

Segment results, assets and liabilities

Segment assets include all tangible assets and current
assets with the exception of tax balances. Segment
liabilities include trade creditors, accrued charges and other
payables, with the exception of tax balances and dividends
payable, attributable to the manufacture and sale activities
of the individual segments.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments or
which otherwise arise from other revenue and net income,
and the depreciation and amortisation of assets attributable
to those segments.

The measurement used for reporting segment profit is
“adjusted EBITDA” i.e. “adjusted earnings before interest,
taxes, depreciation and amortisation”. To arrive at adjusted
EBITDA, the Group’s earnings are further adjusted for items
not specifically attributed to individual segments, such as
other head office or corporate administration costs.

R B F &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LB BEN)
10 DEHE
AEBFTEXKIRERBERAER - BREAEEER

BETHREEAEBRFESMERIRLD @E“*Béfﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ
ZEM—HzTAHRE  AEBEBRAEREBIRILE
A BA KB hE - BN “)H(T@%EI$&EP)

Rt REi o REMBERAERRIEEFE - H 2
ZHRZWEOFHERAERMELAEN MEX  BER
Mz ER -

@) SHXE BEERARE
AWERCREAF LIRS ETRERASRTED BE
BEAESHEFAEA 2 ER B2 HREE - Bt
5 $%lzmﬁﬁﬂg@A;E&uTgmg%%Tﬁ
EDMREIE T 2E BERAE
AUEEBEMABVAERRDEE  BETRENTE
BIRHIE - HHEEREES REMENKERIZER

BN EFE(ER 2 BREIG 2 A HARE AR IR M A AR,

WAR S K2 RAIME DS MEL Z HERNRZE D A
EEZ XM ZED BEE R AR F s - B E

ENEHEMEL 2 ADREZESH

EmD e mMTERA 2 FE A EFHEEBTDAL » B [ K&+
FE - BIE - EREEATZECARRT ] - BERERAE
EBITDA » A& E Zim FW EFLEFE B FER 522 B 8 (40
AR AN RIFTIRAR AN ) #E — 2D AE S -

R FFHR NREEXARAR
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10 SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(@) Segment results, assets and liabilities
(Continued)

In addition to receiving segment information concerning
adjusted EBITDA, management is provided with segment
information concerning inter-segment sales, interest income
and expense from cash balances managed directly by the
segments, depreciation and amortisation and additions to
non-current segment assets used by the segments in their
operations. Inter-segment sales are priced with reference to
prices charged to external parties for similar orders.

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments as
provided to the Group’s most senior executive management
for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of
segment performance for the year is set out below.

10 HHFHE @
(@ oBEE BEEREGEH

BRESAMCHEEBTDAZ DRFERIS - EE BT ELRRH
BRANIHEEDH - FSWARBDE  FTERBHES
RGP 2 BERMENEREN BRSO HEEL
DEER - REDBIHEZ ERBEHIMEES L ZER

BRARETAEERSBTRERABUDEERRTE
DEFRBE 2 ERFIIN T -

Electrical home appliances
ZHER
Asia
(excluding Japan
The United States The PRC Japan Europe and the PRC) Rest of the world Total
A 8 Bk B G (FafRsRYE) ER&E £t
16 2016 2016 216 2016 016 016
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
e i au e fau EETTL e i au
Revenus fom extemal customers 1 EF ZHA 28081 ThoT 263,1% 2541 132508 65,301 1019442
Iner seqment revenue REAFA - 533,994 - - 804,566 - 1498560
Reportable segment revenue THEAPRA 28081 608,941 263139 296471 1,027,069 65,301 2,448,002
Reportable segment profit TREADEA
(adjusted EBITDA) (CHEEBITDA) 2421 7,699 21,029 26,241 109448 6,107 200,551
Reportable segment assets THEATEE - 0740 - - 530,280 - 87,708
Adcionsto non-curent TEEERD
seqmentassets duing heyear — SHEEEN - NUT - - 481 - 0B

Reportable segqment abes THEATEE (69,508

(228481) (297989
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10 SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 10

(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment (b)
revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities

R B F &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

’““Biﬁ‘t(%
EDWBA - B  EERAEBEZHE

(AEWREN)

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Revenue PN
Reportable segment revenue Al RS SR A 2,417,965 2,448,002
Elimination of inter-segment revenue ER 5 S UR A K 55 (1,420,268) (1,428,560)
Consolidated revenue AU A 997,697 1,019,442
Profit bl
Reportable segment profit AT E D E0m A 155,516 200,551
Elimination of inter-segment profits NEB o 5B K R 35 (87,999) (95,838)
Reportable segment profit derived HAREEEINEF 2
from Group’s external customers Al ¥ 0 &0 a A 67,517 104,713
Other revenue and net income HE A KRS 6,440 1,853
Depreciation and amortisation TE R (27,314) (33,862)
Finance costs B GRS (198) -
Consolidated profit before taxation RAEBRBADEF 46,445 72,704
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets AISRE D EEE 921,280 857,703
Elimination of inter-segment receivables R385 265 & Uk BR 18 1K §5 (130,740) (102,452)
790,540 755,251
Tax recoverable AR EIFIR - 541
Deferred tax assets FIETRIEE E 5,296 4,910
Consolidated total assets REBEE 795,836 760,702

2 FFR IRE

EBRAF]
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10 SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 10 ZEEHRE (@)
(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment (b)) FHEDMBA - B - BERBBEZHIR

revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities (&
(Continued)
2016
HK$’000
BT T
Liabilities =N
Reportable segment liabilities AIRE DR A E (297,989)
Elimination of inter-segment payables R30S0 BRIBIK 34 124,562
(173,427)
Dividends payable FERRR B (336)
Tax payable FERTLIE (14,742)
Deferred tax liabilities BIETIE A& (308)
Consolidated total liabilities Faeas (188,813)
(c) Major customers (0 EEBEF
Revenue from major customers, each of whom amountedto  #EZE PG Z A - BEF 9 5lE L4 A 10% 5 A
10% or more of the total revenue, is set out below: LT
2016
HK$’000
PERET T
Customer A ZPEA 302,875
Customer B ®FB 263,659
Customer C EFC 151,276

Customer D ZFD 138,713
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AR B M
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(B REN)
| PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT I EEEE
AND LEASEHOLD LAND
(@) Reconciliation of carrying amount (@ SREEENR
Interests in Interests in
leasehold land leasehold land
held for own use held for own
under finance Furniture, use under
leases  Buildings held fixtures and operating leases
Construction  HEHEMAE  forownuse  Plantand  equipment Motor REfens Total
in progress BER B#EHE  machinery il vehicles  Sub-total KRR AEREE
EEIR  zidEs JEEY  REREE  RERGA HE Mt ZtibER fit
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK§ 000
LA AT AT LA AEfr BB TR LA AEfr BT
Cost: HA:
At 1 January 2016 R2016E1A1A 2,59 523 185990 24,043 134,183 11,784 554,031 16,034 570,085
Exchange adjustments R (165) - (10,004) (9,620) ©,115) (427 (29,331) (1,017) (30,348
Addtions bl 13938 - - - 7521 1269 2,128 - 2,128
Transfers & (11,078 - - 1,061 9117 - - - -
Disposals i - - ) (4632 (4.440) (1,797) (10,881) - (10,881)
At 81 December 2016 R16E12A31A 5,291 5,28 175,980 201,952 137,260 10829 536,647 15017 551,564
At 1 January 2017 R0ITE1R1A 5,291 5,280 175980 201,952 187,260 10829 536,647 15,017 551,564
Bchengeadisiments SR 374 - 11,299 11,097 12,394 568 3,722 1149 36,471
Addtions & 2,633 - - 429 8,885 2,676 38,486 - 38,486
Transfers &Y (23320) - - 5,104 18,157 5 - - -
Disposals i - - (33 (5,69) (6,498) 1,221 (13,448) - (13,448)
At 81 December 2017 ROTE12A31A 4,978 523 187,246 216,749 170,198 12901 597,307 16,166 613473
Accumulated ZitlERAE
amortisation
and depreciation:
At 1 January 2016 R2016E1A1A - 1989 146,164 153,19 77,186 9,802 388,337 7,898 396,230
Exchange adjustments iy - - (8,131) (6,159) (6,390) (380) 21,056) (520) (21,576)
Charge for he year KEENE - 105 6,836 7791 18122 815 3,469 3 3,862
Disposals e - - 4 B971) (3997) (1,562 (9,53) - 9534)
At 31 December 2016 R16E12A31R - 2,004 144,865 150,861 84,921 8475 391,216 7,766 398,982
At 1 January 2017 ROITE1A1R - 2,004 144,865 150,861 84,921 8475 391,216 7,766 398,982
Bxchange adjustments R - - 9,366 7,176 7918 49 24,880 611 25,500
Charge for the year TEERE - 105 2,358 7809 15,715 941 2,928 36 27314
Disposals e - - 4 (4,369) (5,797) {1,117) (11,307) - (11,307)
At 31 December 2017 ROITE12 AR - 219 156,565 161477 102,757 8,728 431,126 8,763 440,489
Carrying value: REFE:
At 31 December 2017 ROTE12A31A 4,978 3,036 30,681 55,272 67,441 4173 165,581 7403 172,984
At 31 December 2016 R016F12A31A 5,291 314 31,115 51,001 52,339 2,354 145,331 7,061 162,582

R FFR MREFXARA
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Il PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
AND LEASEHOLD LAND (Continued)

BEEE @)

(b)  The analysis of carrying value of properties (b)  ¥IREREIFESHTMT :
is as follows:
Medium-term leases PHITEE
—in Hong Kong - BB
— outside Hong Kong — BB
Representing: 4ARK -
Buildings held for own use FHIEERREED
Interests in leasehold land held BT HAERIETR
for own use under finance leases 2 THb iR
Interests in leasehold land held RIBGEEHERIEAR

for own use under operating leases T hERS

2016
HK$'000
AT

8,066
33,441

41,507

31,115
3,141
7,251

41,507




12 INCOMETAX INT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE CONSOLIDATED 12

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(@) Current taxation

in the consolidated (@

statement of financial position represents:

R B F &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

RERE BB R R FTEH

REMBRRRZFAEH

(AEWREN)

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Provision for the year (note 6(a)) IFEHEHE (M52 6()
— Hong Kong Profits Tax - BABEH 3,291 2,162
- PRC Enterprise Income Tax - REI{PEETIET 7,298 11,919
10,589 14,081
Provisional tax paid TEMIIR S H
- Hong Kong Profits Tax - BTG (2,141) (2,795)
- PRC Enterprise Income Tax - PRI EPSHL (4,561) (5,960)
(6,702) (8,755)
3,887 5,326
Balance of income tax provisions FFE SRR EHREE (M)
relating to prior years (Note) 275 8,875
4,162 14,201
Represented by: 275 :
Tax recoverable AR BT IE - 541
Tax payable FERIHIR (4,162) (14,742)
(4,162) (14,201)

R FFHR NREEXARAR 99



12 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)

(@) Current taxation in the consolidated

statement of financial position represents:

(Continued)
Note:

Included in the balance of income tax provisions relating to prior
years is a provision, net of payment, of approximately HK$Nil (31
December 2016: HK$8,615,000) for the tax adjustment relating to
transfer pricing audit in respect of the years ended 31 December
2002 to 2011 (“2002 to 2011 TP Audit”) by the PRC tax authorities.
Details of the transfer pricing audits are as follows:

2002 to 2011 TP Audit

In 2013, the PRC tax authorities initiated a transfer pricing audit on a
subsidiary of the Company in the PRC in respect of the years ended
31 December 2002 to 2011. At 31 December 2016, the cumulative
provisions made against the potential tax adjustment relating to the
transfer-pricing audit amounted to RMB11,003,000 (equivalent to
HK$13,609,000). Of this, in 2014, the Group paid RMB3,000,000
(equivalent to HK$3,799,000) to the tax authorities. During the year
ended 31 December 2017, the Group has reached a consensus
with the PRC tax authority to settle the case via tax payments
totalling of RMB10,000,000 (equivalent to HK$11,291,000).

2012 to 2015 TP Audit

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the PRC tax authorities
initiated a transfer-pricing audit on the same subsidiary in respect
of the years ended 31 December 2012 to 2015. The Group
has reached a consensus with the PRC tax authority and paid
RMB2,338,000 (equivalent to HK$2,786,000) to settle the case.
Such amount is included in the under-provision of PRC enterprise
income tax in respect of prior years as disclosed in note 6.
Accordingly, the tax payable in relating to the 2012 to 2015 TP Audit
is HK$Nil at 31 December 2016.

12 REEEMBRRROFER @

(@ HREMBRRERZABHR (@)

B

ﬁ_\r

EREMNFIEPRIERE  FIM - L9B%ZT (20166128318 -
718,615,000 7T ) 2R BRI FTEE & A B9 2002 S 2 2011 5 12 A 31
BEEEREE (200262201 £BREEEE ) - BREER
EFBNOT :

2002 FE 2011 FEREREE

20134 » REBAAEE QR —HE QR A #2002 F = 2011
F£12 431 AFEEEREE - N 2016412 31 A ABEREEE
B R AT AR 11,003,000 (A 7% 13,609,0007T ) °
Erh o REER 2014 F R R EI S 5 A R 3,000,000 7T (A%
REHE3,799,0007T) ° 22017 F12 AT HEE I - AEB
B SRR K R A A BIA R 10,000,000 7T (FEE
7% 11,291,000 7T ) fERIEZR ©

2012 F E 2015 FEREREE

HZE2016F12 A1 HILFE - FEMAAREARIE—HEBER
AIERI2012FEE2015F 12 A31 HEEBISERE - AEBC EFP
B R AL BRIE AR HE il - WO AR % 2,338,000 7T (HHER B
2,786,000 7T ) MABRRIL R - ZE ¢ HBRIEEN 6 BBRHURIFE
RECEMRERBLA - B 2012 F 2015 FEREEEEE W
HIENTIE AT 2016 512 A 31 B AB KT T -
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R B F &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(B REN)

12 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 12 REHREHERTAROFTEHR @
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities (b)) CEREEHBEEREMS:
recognised:
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Net deferred tax assets FRERIEEE 5,296 4,910
Net deferred tax liabilities SFELR A & (734) (308)
4,562 4,602

The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position and the
movements during the year are as follows:

FEERGEMBRARTFERRBZELEHELEE, (A
18) HARR MR EE) 2 F BT

Depreciation

allowances
in excess of
the related Other
depreciation temporary
Deferred tax arising from: Tax losses ERMK differences Total
EEREBZEER : HIEEE RERITE HttEE=EE a5t
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT BT BT
At 1 January 2016 m2016%F1H1H 100 (69) 8,147 8,178
Exchange adjustments Hpge) s g2 - - (310) (310)
Credit/(charged) to profit or 5 A/ (30K ) 7% TSk E5 18
loss (note 6(a)) (MI5E6(a)) 19 (51) (3,234) (3,266)
At 31 December 2016 R20164F 12 A31 H 119 (120) 4,603 4,602
At 1 January 2017 7201741818 119 (120) 4,603 4,602
Exchange adjustments HmEe) s o2 - - 277 277
Charged to profit or HBRTE 5 H BB
loss (note 6(a)) (P 5F 6(2)) (32) - (285) (317)
At 31 December 2017 2017912 A31 H 87 (120) 4,595 4,562

R FFHR NREEXARAR
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I3 INVENTORIES

(@) Inventories in the consolidated statement of
financial position comprise:

13 #FE
() REBRREREFSEEE:

2016
HK$’000
BETIT

Raw materials B R
Work in progress A
Finished goods EERK R

57,129
58,882

116,011

(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense is as follows:

b) FESEZIMCRIREAMT :

2016
HK$'000
BETIT

Carrying amount of inventories sold & &S EREE
Write-down of inventories FERE
Reversal of write-down of inventories 17 & (& 21

864,419
1,007
(1,722)

863,704

During the year, certain aged inventories were sold, and
as a result, a reversal of write-down of inventories of
HK$5,054,000 (2016: HK$1,722,000) has been recognised
and included in cost of inventories sold for the year.

4 TRADEAND OTHER RECEIVABLES

RER ETFEFECEL  AFEERERDEE
5,054,000 7T (ZZ — /<4 : &% 1,722,000 7T) B RO 5T
AFAHEFERAR -

14 EBEREMERERE

2016
HK$'000
AT

Trade debtors B SEBA
Other debtors HAMEBA
Deposits and prepayments HEDSENE

215,974
7,715
11,335

235,024

All of the trade and other receivables, apart from
certain deposits amounting to HK$1,148,000 (2016:
HK$1,062,000), are expected to be recovered or recognised
as expenses within one year.

PIEE SN EAMBKIRIR - REMIZEERRER 1,148,000
7L (20164F : ¥ 1,062,0007T) * BAR 1 F A AT RIS ERR
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14 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)
(@)  Ageing analysis

The ageing analysis of trade debtors as of the end of the
reporting period, based on invoice date, is as follows:

R B F &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(B REN)

14 EBEZREMEWRIREE)

@) FRERDT

RERREZEHAZRRIZEZAHOFOT

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T BT IT

Within 1 month 1{EAR 66,673 71,185
1 to 3 months 1EAZ3EA 85,816 98,720
3to 12 months 3MEAE 1218 A 41,715 46,049
Over 12 months HBi@121EA 5 20
194,209 215,974

Trade debtors are due within 30 to 120 days from the date
of billing. Further details on the Group’s credit policy are set
out in note 22(a).

(b)

The ageing analysis of trade debtors that are neither
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as
follows:

Trade debtors that are not impaired

BHEBARBEAZERRI0E120RAZIE - AEEZ
EEBRFAEHNHEE22()

b) HEREZESEBEA

BREHBAZERDMIRBE DX EFLRELT

2017 2016

HK$’000 HK$’000

BET T BT

Neither past due nor impaired BB BEHSURIE 169,103 167,646

Less than 1 month past due BHE L1 @A 19,856 42,272

1 to 3 months past due B A1 & H = 3E A 5,184 4,630
More than 3 months but less than A3 EAE LR 12(EA

12 months past due 61 1,413

More than 12 months past due wHREA 128 A 5 13

Amounts past due bt 25,106 48,328

194,209 215,974

R FFHR NREEXARAR
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14 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

(b) Trade debtors that are not impaired
(Continued)

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate
to a wide range of customers for whom there was no recent
history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
management believes that no impairment allowance is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not
been a significant change in credit quality and the balances
are considered fully recoverable.

I5 CASHAND CASH EQUIVALENTS

14 EBZRHEAMEWRRE®)

(b) RERBEZEZBEBAE

RIS B B SORER AR B PR BIERACE

EEaMELERREIERENBRUTFEARERARA
Rifecsr - RIBBELR  BEBRGHSEREEREE
EEEARCRGEHER 2BURBIMIOL B FHIRERER -

15 BERKRESEEER

2016
HK$’'000
T T

BATIER
POERERS

Bank deposits
Cash at bank and in hand

179,241
72,393

251,634

I6 TRADEAND OTHER PAYABLES

l6 BEZREMENRE

2016
HK$'000
AT

BHEEA

Trade creditors
Accrued charges and other payables

e & A R E N ERIA

120,041
53,386

173,427

All of the trade and other payables are expected to be
settled within one year.

FIE B 5 R EA RN ERIBEN A FRA -
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6 TRADEAND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

The ageing analysis of trade creditors as of the end of the
reporting period, based on invoice date, is as follows:

R B F &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(B REN)

l6 EBFSZREMENSIRE®
RIREEARE SHEEAZ ERREZARSMT

2017 2016

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T BRI

Within 1 month 1EAR 71,040 49,013
1 to 3 months 1= 31EA 66,730 63,023
3 to 12 months 3E1218A 7,285 5,407
Over 12 months HBiE121EA 815 2,598
145,870 120,041

|7 DEFINED CONTRIBUTION RETIREMENT

PLANS

The Group operates the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees
employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance (the “Ordinance”). The scheme
is defined contribution retirement plan administered by an
independent trustee. Under the MPF Scheme, the employer
and its employees are each required to make contributions
to the plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income,
subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000.
Contributions to the plan vest immediately upon the
completion of service in the relevant service period.

At 31 December 2017, certain employees of the Group had
completed the required number of years of service under
the Ordinance and are eligible for long service payments on
termination of their employment. The Group is only liable
to make such payments when the termination meets the
required circumstances specified in the Ordinance and the
employees’ entitlement is not covered by the aforesaid
provident funds. At 31 December 2017, the Group’s
contributions to the MPF Scheme and the accrued interest
thereon exceeded the potential liabilities should the required
circumstances specified in the Ordinance be met.

17 FREHRFRAKEE

AEEREBRTMELABEFTEEIA/RETERMEK
(&G D) PIENEREMRE 2 BB RERMRHIERESS
E([MRmEsTE))  ZRBEtE B ERESER -
REREDTE AKEREEBYAGAKEERRF
£ 5% SREEFEIHK - Fe LRATAE30,0007T
P IR IR SR L ER R SE A IR B

fE2017F 12 H31H - AREMEH E IHRBFHHEE
EF/BEFBGEG(THRE ) ORE  THREARTERATZ
ERHR% S AMEWKENIEEZBET - AEBEAN
ZHBEEAZEINBZERETEINERBERESH
E¥ o AFIATE LGS B TEER - AEBEE2017F 12
A3 BERAESFEITRGTZRBESHNEIRTE O BESR

&
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|7 DEFINED CONTRIBUTION RETIREMENT
PLANS (Continued)

The Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC also participate in
defined contribution retirement schemes covering its full-
time PRC employees. The schemes are administered by
the relevant government authorities in the PRC. The Group
and the PRC employees are required to make contributions
based on certain percentages of the applicable payroll costs
as stipulated under the requirements in the PRC and the
relevant government authorities undertake to assume the
retirement benefit obligations of all existing and future retired
employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC.

18 BANKING FACILITIES

At 31 December 2017, the Group had unsecured revolving
banking facilities of HK$68,350,000 (2016: HK$68,350,000).
The banking facilities include documentary letters of credit,
trust receipt, bill payables, trade loans and trade guarantee.
The amount utilised by the Group at 31 December 2017
under these facilities was HK$519,000 (2016: HK$177,000).

19 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

The Company has a share option scheme which was
adopted on 6 June 2003 whereby the directors of the
Company are authorised, at their discretion, to invite (i)
directors, employees of any member of the Group or any
controlling shareholder of the Company (“Controlling
Shareholder”) or any company controlled by a Controlling
Shareholder; (ii) holder of any securities issued by any
member of the Group or any Controlling Shareholder of
the Company or any company controlled by a Controlling
Shareholder; and (ji) (@) any business or joint venture partner,
contractor, agent or representative of, (b) any supplier of
goods or services to, or (c) any customer or distributor
of goods or service of, any member of the Group or any
Controlling Shareholder or a company controlled by a
Controlling Shareholder; to take up options to subscribe for
shares of the Company. A nominal consideration of HK$1.00
is paid by these participants for each lot of share options
granted. The options are exercisable from the date of grant
within a period of ten years. Each option gives the holder the
right to subscribe for one ordinary share in the Company.

17 SEHRFCRKEE (9

AEBETENMEARFTEATHEEAZBBETRIR
RERET S - WEFEIRPBEBTABAFIEE - AREL
BTIRRUAIRESREABHF 2 T OLLEHH
R MEBBTAGAEASBEETENMBARZER
BERFERKRE T ZRANBEMEE

18 RITEEHEE

H2017F 12 A31 H » AEERRTESZEARKTEE
R 49 5 7% #68,350,0007T (2016 4F © & # 68,350,000
JL) c RITZEERENRARERIL - EalE  BEE
B BSERRBESER -ANBEREEREENAEE
519,0007T (2016 4 : /&% 177,0007C) °

19 RBHEEMURGCAERRIS

ARRBMN2003F6 A6 AR BHEE > NAARESE
HERERERT (N AEBERKE RARHARE 2 ER
PR ([ERRR ) SR PTIEGI 2 AR 2 ESE - BB
(i) FFAEAREEEMKE - ZRRRSIERBR TS Z 2
AIBRITZEMNEFZHBA - Ri)@ EMRBEREER
HEEE RIERAE HO)EMERKRBHER
HQEMEF R HE - DAEEEMKE K IZEBRBER
o IR R S 2 (B AR (TREBRERB AR R
B 2T ALTNEE N T ZRBAINRES —HBRE -
BRETEBRIZHBEF10FR - B1BRETHAE
A ZFENBIBARR T — BB B AE -
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R B F &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(B REN)

19 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 19 RFIENURMAERRZS @)
PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(@) The terms and conditions of the grants () EAFERTFZEROT - HEHAEERE
that existed during the years ended 3| LUER RS 2 REEEAT -
December 2017 and 2016 are as follows:

Contractual life

Number of of options
instruments BB
TEZE RHFH
Options granted to directors: BREETES
—on 30 June 2008 - 7200846 A30H 11,767,600 10 years
— on 6 October 2009 - 7200910 H6 H 2,700,000 10 years
—on 20 July 2012 - R2012F7 A20H 11,600,000 10 years
Options granted to employees: BRERTES :
—on 30 June 2008 - 7200846 A30H 5,373,000 10 years
—on 6 October 2009 - 7200910 H6 H 740,000 10 years
—on 20 July 2012 - R2012F7 A20H 4,128,000 10 years
Options granted to other eligible persons: BRERTEERAL
—on 30 June 2008 - 720084 6 A 30 H 3,100,000 10 years
Total share options 4B BB RS 39,408,600

R FFHR NREEXARAR
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19 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 19 RFIENURMAERRZS @)
PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b)  The number and weighted average exercise (b) FBREZBEBRMEFIITEEMOT :

prices of share options are as follows:

Qutstanding at the
beginning of the year
Exercised during the year
Cancelled during the year

Outstanding at the end
of the year

Exercisable at the end
of the year

2016
Weighted
average
exercise Number
price of options
T i
1TE(E ZH=E
HK$ 000
T F %
FRITHE
0.798 29,670
REEZITHE 0.823 (2,480)
N4 S EI| B 0.759 (1,383)
REZIERITHE
0.798 25,807
REEZIEAIITE
0.798 25,807

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for ~ AN EITHERENITE B 2 IEFHREAEE1.087T
share options exercised during the year was HK$1.08 (2016: (20164 : &#0.997T) °

HK$0.99).

The options outstanding at 31 December 2017 had an 72017812 331 B AR T{ERERE 2 1T{E (B AE%0.6307T
exercise price of HK$0.630, HK$0.690, HK$0.910 (2016: % 0.690 7T & & #0.910 7T (2016 4F : & # 0.6307T * &
HK$0.630, HK$0.690, HK$0.910) and a weighted average ¥ 0.690 /T /& #0.91070) K INEFT 88 NLLOFHZ 2.4
remaining contractual life of 2.4 years (2016: 3.2 years). F (20164 : 3.24F) °
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19 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(c)  Fair value of share options and assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for share options
granted is measured by reference to the fair value of share
options granted. The estimate of the fair value of the share
options granted is measured based on Black Scholes
model. The fair value measurement is categorised within
level 2. The contractual life of the share option is used as
an input into this model. Expectations of early exercise are
incorporated into the Black Scholes model.

Fair value of share options and assumptions:

R B F &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(B REN)

19 RRECSUROGAERRZ ®)
() BREZAFERRR

AR EBREMER 2 RBZ AFEDIZEME L ERE
Qifﬁﬁﬁ‘ﬁ% ﬁﬁ%‘ﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁ%z%ﬁ N HETIREEHR S
A8 A HENDE2HE - BREZAOFHIERILA
BAZEBAIR - ?EHHT&EH@E)T%FHEC%%%&KO

Bz A THERRR

Date of grant
®FEH
6 October 2009
20091086 H

30 June 2008
20086 A 30 H

20 July 2012
20126 7H20H

Fair value at measurement date RET2E B8z AFE
Share price B
Exercise price 1EE

Expected volatility (expressed
as weighted average volatility
used in the modelling under
the Black Scholes model)

Option life (expressed as

R IERT)

weighted average life used in T8 T 2% 7€ P F htE
the modelling under the Black FHRIERT)
Scholes model)

Expected dividends TEHARR B

Risk-free interest rate (based on EREFIE (FR3F
3-year Hong Kong Fund INERSES)

Exchange Notes)

The expected volatility is based on the historical volatility
(calculated based on the weighted average remaining life
of the share options), adjusted for any expected changes
to future volatility based on publicly available information.
Expected dividends are based on historical dividends.
Changes in the subjective input assumptions could materially
affect the fair value estimate.

There were no market conditions associated with the share
option grants.

TEERR IR (A RERIE
0 R AT I

HK$0.0929 8 7T
HK$0.6900 /& 7T
HK$0.6900 /& 7T

HK$0.11295 #7T
HK$0.61000 % 7T
HK$0.63000 7 7T

HK$0.13685 87T
HK$0.90000 7T
HK$0.91000 %8 7T

BT ARHERN

36.94% 44.579% 33.073%

3 years 3 years 3 years
6.67% 8.20% 6.687%
2.87% 0.931% 0.182%

TEHYR MR T 1R B R MR (1R 8 M 2 I P19 e F B AT
BH)HE - UBRBRBEARASE éfﬂ?éiﬁ?ﬁﬁfé/)imaﬂ’ﬂ{ﬁ“
f’EHjuﬂW BHREDNRBEZREFE - TBARRKIEA
BZEHRHRAFEZGHEREATE

R s SRR AW £k

R FFHR NREEXARAR

109



20 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(@)  Share capital

(i) Issued share capital

Ordinary shares, issued EER X BRITRAE :

and fully paid:

At 1 January W1A1H

Share issued under share & 317 2 BEARHEAR 17
option scheme

At 31 December W12 A381H

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to
one vote per share at meetings of the Company. All ordinary
shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s residual
assets.

(i) Shares issued under share option scheme

During the year ended 31 December 2017, options were
exercised to subscribe for 6,045,000 (2016: 2,480,000)
ordinary shares of the Company at a total cash consideration
of HK$4,817,000 (2016: HK$2,040,000).

20 EBEX - RERERE

(@ B
(i) BRITRA
2016
Number of
shares HK$’'000
IR = BET T
477,392,260 445,821
2,480,000 2,346
479,872,260 448,167

BBREFBEABETERDMAEROKE  XHERASE
EeR tRER—ERERR - AEEBREAKER R
BENEARFH

(i) BRERTZRG

HE2017F12 A1 BFE L - LEREB 4,817,000
(2016 4F : 72,040,000 7T ) 175 BB IR 1 88 B 6,045,000 f%
NEE AR (2016 4F © 2,480,000 A% E3EA%) ©
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R B F &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(B REN)

20 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 20 ¥ @ERKRE @)
(Continued)
(@) Share capital (Continued) (@ BRAEE)
(iii) Terms of unexpired and unexercised share (i) RBEHRREEAZRIBRKRTENBRE
options at the end of the reporting period
Exercise 2017 2016
Exercise period price Number Number
1T1EE] TEE HE HE
30 June 2008 to 29 June 2018 20086 A30EZE HK$0.910 9,977,600 13,322,600
201846 A 29 H B 0.910 7T
6 October 2009 to 5 October 2019 200910 A6 EBEZ HK$0.630 860,000 2,360,000
2019410 A5H 75 0.630 7T
20 July 2012 to 19 July 2022 20127 A20BZ HK$0.690 8,925,000 10,125,000
202247 A19H 75 # 0.690 7T
19,762,600 25,807,600

Each option entitles the holder to subscribe for one ordinary
share in the Company. Further details of these options are
set out in note 19.

FEANGRINE - BBERERBE -BRARBEEK - B
BB IFEHN AR BREMEE19

(b) Dividends b) KRE
(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the (i) KEEREMNREEERN RRREMN
Company attributable to the year
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Interim dividend declared and paid BEMRIREE 2 F RS
of 2 HK cents per ordinary share FREE RS 2140
(2016: 2 HK cents per ordinary share) (20164 @ &R E @B 210) 9,718 9,597
Final dividend proposed after the AR E BRE i 2 REAIR B
end of the reporting period FREEBREE 410
of 4 HK cents per ordinary share (2016 4 : GREBAEE 410)
(2016: 4 HK cents per ordinary
share) 19,437 19,195
Special dividend proposed after ARG IREER L
the end of the reporting period BRI BB E
of Nil (2016: 2 HK cents per (2016 5F - BIREBAEE 210)
ordinary share) - 9,597
29,155 38,389

R FFHR NREEXARAR



20 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(b) Dividends (Continued)

(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the
Company attributable to the year (Continued)

The final and special dividends proposed after the end of the
reporting period have not been recognised as liabilities at the
end of the reporting period.

(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the
Company attributable to the previous financial
year, approved and paid during the year

20 EX- REERRE®

(b)) BEUE)

() AFEENREEXDRRREMSL(E)

RAREMRREZE MIRE 2 RBBE KRR ERA
WEPRRERRAEE

(i) REFERNREEFQATARREEREFFED
AR

2016
HK$'000
BT T
Final dividend in respect of the AFEERMEEARFER
previous financial year, approved o RS AR E Bk
and paid during the year, B AL (2016 4F -
of 4 HK cents per ordinary share BREBERAEE 4)
(2016: 4 HK cents per ordinary
share) 19,150
Special dividend in respect of the FFERAIREERFED
previous financial year, approved o R AT AR E Bk
and paid during the year, 2L (2016 4F -
of 2 cents per ordinary share ERETBRAEEZIT)
(2016: nil cents per ordinary
share) _
19,150

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves
(i) Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the consolidated
financial statements of foreign operations. The reserve is
dealt with in accordance with accounting policies set out in
note 2(q).

(0 MEZHEEREN
() EXRE

FE 34 6 5 B0 0 8 B S0 7 2 o 2 B R R 5 MO SN 36
2B o GHERERN G EORIE 20) B -
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20 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(c)  Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(i) Capital reserve

The capital reserve comprises the fair value of the actual
or estimated number of unexercised share options granted
to employees of the Group and other eligible persons
recognised in the accordance with the accounting policy
adopted for share-based payments in note 2(m).

(iii)  PRC statutory reserve

Pursuant to the laws and regulations governing the PRC
enterprises, certain of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries, which
are wholly foreign-owned enterprises, are required to allocate
at least 10% of their after-tax profit but before dividend
distribution to general reserve until the reserve has reached
50% of their registered capital. The general reserve can only
be used, upon approval by the relevant authority, to offset
accumulated losses or increase capital. Appropriation to
general reserve during the year amounted to approximately
HK$3,629,000 (2016: HK$434,000).

(d)

At 31 December 2017, the aggregate amount of reserves
available for distribution to equity shareholders of the
Company was HK$32,372,000 (2016: HK$24,889,000).
After the end of the reporting period, the directors proposed
a final dividend of 4 HK cents and a special dividend of Nil
(2016: a final dividend of 4 HK cents and a special dividend
of 2 HK cents per ordinary share) totaling HK$19,437,000
(2016: HK$28,792,000). These dividends have not been
recognised as liabilities at the end of the reporting period.

Distributability of reserves

R B F &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(B REN)

20 EXR - RERBRE®
(0 REZIHERBNE)
(i) EAEHE

B e B R IR IR & 5t BOR Y & 2(m) BR A AR AR R B BE X
FTrAEENREMEER AL ZEER M RITERBRE
HENNFERER -

(i) FEEERE

KBRPEAREMBEZ ZERETHEEZ Bk AEE
ZHEHBARBINGBELE ALK 10% D 2FHiE
BN ERFEER EEZRBETIMELRN0% A
IF - ERFEHERALEEFEE RILERNIKHEREEIBE
MMER - KFE DA 2L BEE2EBFELO B 3,269,000
TC (2016 4F : 7##5 434,000 7C) °

(d) WP ERE

R2017F 12 AT BEFM A DR FARGIRR 2 EEERE
78 #.32,372,000 7T (2016 F : /& #24,889,0007T ) » B
AREE  EFTERTREREBRARPEBE 4R
BRI EBEEE (2016 FF + AL EAR RIS B 4L R
RIRE B EEE 2l - A5t 19,437,000 7T (2016 £F « E#E
28,792,000) ° RANIREHAIRE LR SEAERAALRE -

R FFHR NREEXARAR
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20 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(e) Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing
products and services commensurately with the level of risk
and by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher
shareholder returns and the advantages and security
afforded by a sound capital position, and makes judgements
to the capital structure in light of changes in economic
conditions.

Consistent with industry practice, the Group monitors its
capital structure on the basis of a net debt-to-adjusted
capital ratio. For this purpose the Group defines net debt
as total debt (which includes trade and other payables) plus
unaccrued proposed dividends. Adjusted capital comprises
all components of equity less unaccrued proposed
dividends.

During 2017, the Group’s strategy, which was unchanged
from 2016, was to maintain the net debt-to-adjusted capital
ratio of no more than 37% (2016: 37%). In order to maintain
or adjust the ratio, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares, return
capital to shareholders, raise new debt financing or sell
assets to reduce debt.

20 EX- REERRE®

() EAXEHE

AEFBZEAARREERAARBEAEE 2 EHELEL
B UEERERERRREHD R R AEmERA LR
AR - AR Go B 1% R 2 R KF R 2 AR B AR %5 B DA & 32
RAZZERES

AEBETHREFHRITEEAEBUER FER O HRA
R RERZ2RHEBERNKR  RELEBR TEL
HENGHRDEE) 2 HH -

HITREH B AEESUFAREHEABRERLXR
HEERHEALE - plilt - AEEZRBRE(BRES N
HoA R 5 AR IR e M IS R AR BUR) I IERTERR AR, - &8
ABEABEMAEDR TR ZZRERE

R20174 - REE 2 RIENE 2016 FE—15 - RBHEHFE
EEAER A B TEBB37% (2016 4F : 37%) ° & T #
AR - AEBEAEAZEERNS FREZRE - B
TTERE  REIRATIRE  EEHMCEERENHEELE
LU AMETE o




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iR B M &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(B REN)

20 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 20 ¥ - #ERBRE @)

(Continued)
(e)  Capital management (Continued) (e) EXREE(HE)
The net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio at 31 December 2017 720174 KX 2016 12 A 31 H 2 F A B R FHRR AL
and 2016 was as follows: FlanT
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT IT
Current liabilities: mEAE
Trade and other payables 25 R E M E RIS 195,347 173,427
Add: Proposed dividends 0 EREREERE 19,437 28,792
Net debt 8EFE 214,784 202,219
Total equity B 595,361 571,889
Less: Proposed dividends B BRI ERRE (19,437) (28,792)
Adjusted capital BRABRER 575,924 543,097
Net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio FEEEFFEREHLLAF 37% 37%

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject AT M HE QTN E ZINEBNERERHFE -
to externally imposed capital requirements.

2l COMMITMENTS 21 AEME

Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2017 not #2017 12 A 31 B4R 4 B 1§ IR E 8 B IR E 8 K & A%
provided for in the consolidated financial statements were as ~ #£40°F :

follows:
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Contracted for: BEL
- Purchase of equipment and moulds - BEE R EHENME A 3,858 4,740

R FFHR NREEXARAR 115



22  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and foreign
currency risks arises in the normal course of the Group’s
business. The Group’s exposure to risks and the financial
risk management policies and practices used by the Group
to manage these risks are described below.

(@) Credit risk and concentration risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to cash and
cash equivalents and trade debtors. The maximum exposure
to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of each
financial asset in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

Substantially all the Group’s cash and cash equivalents are
deposited in financial institutions in Hong Kong and the PRC.
The credit risk is limited as the majority of counterparties
are financial institutions with high credit ratings assigned
by international credit rating agencies or stated-controlled
financial institutions with good reputations.

In respect of trade debtors, management has a credit policy
in place and the exposure to the credit risk is monitored on
an ongoing basis. Individual credit evaluations are performed
on all customers requiring credit over a certain amount.
These evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of
making payments when due and current ability to pay, and
take into account information specific to the customer as
well as pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. Trade debtors are due within 30 to 120
days from the date of billing. Normally, the Group does not
obtain collateral from customers. Management considers the
aggregate risks arising from the possibility of credit losses
are limited and to be acceptable.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each customer. The default
risks of the industry and country in which customers operate
also have an influence on credit risk but to a lesser extent.
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has a certain
concentration of credit risk as 8% (2016: 42%); and 75%
(2016: 71%) of the trade debtors was due from the largest
customer and the five largest customers respectively.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade debtors are set out
in note 14.

22 HEERREERQFE

EE -Be2ndlE  PERINERRENAEEN—RE
BERREL - BERR T M BRARE X AEENE S
EEBREERR T

(@ FERBREFRE

AEENEERRIERERE MRS EEHEERESE
BA > RREERBZELZINGEFBRRNEKRS FA
M EEREE °

AEEIFERGLRASFERE —REANEERTZE
ALTESREE B2RPEZEERREERIAX
SHEAFGNHRERREEFERBIREEREZUT
MR I B ZRAZ ] 2 RAFE BV TSR

HREZEBAMES  EEEERENEERR  TeHE
EEMASOERERR - HXMEERBAE TEESR
ZEPHEETEMNEEN G - HEFHETEHHELNU
ERHE 2 ERLBRBFHHENES  YEEEPHRE
AEHRREFPMEHRERENESR - EFRKFIARE
HAREE BT 30-120 BN EH] - BE— A Z EUSRAKAE
7% BF2BEET IR TEMNEMES - KEE K
TeREPYHRERR - LEAS TR EEERRHE
EzEERBELZ RFTRBAR K AES

AREBFEBZEERR  TEXERF ARSI
2 - XPREMEZTERBRZEBSRABRMTMTZEEER
B MERERYHERD  c RAREHRILE  AEBENAAR
FIEESEBAKIERY% (2016 4F : 42%) K 75% (2016 4F -
71%) ¢ BUERSZ—EREMNEESPER -

EHESBEBAEERREEMTE 14 hIRE
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22 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)  Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible
for their own cash management, including the short term
investment of cash surpluses. The Group’s policy is to
regularly monitor its liquidity requirements to ensure that
it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate
committed lines of funding from major financial institutions to
meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the Group’s
financial liabilities which are based on the contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on
rates current at the end of the reporting period) and the
earliest date the Group and the Company can be required to

pay:

R B F &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(B REN)

22 BXEREERAFE@E

(b) ELRBUREE

AEEETZENEBEREREZERSERASE B
REPRSBHIRELIEMEFTNENRSF R - KEE
ZBRBEMERRE RIERZRBEF R - AEREHE
HRARSHERATNRHESER 2 ES - NEFEEH
REMRBIEFE -

TRINEAEEZFTENSRABRREHRRZHBTE
HWHIRFS - ERERAH LWRBMBAZRASR (BER
BROEZME MR FHMEEENBERR - StEZ
ME) RAREZRERZENR BHETE

2017 2016

Total Total
contractual Within contractual Within
undiscounted 6 months undiscounted 6 months
cash flow oron cash flow oron
Carrying  #iHEEH demand Camying  HEHEAH demand
amount HMEEERE  6FEARD amount  FURERE  6EAAL
e ZEER  EXEFR REE ZEER  ERENE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
AR AR AR BETTT BETTT BETTT
Trade and other payables EoRAMERNRE 195,347 195,347 195,347 173,427 173427 173,427

In order to manage the liquidity demands above, at 31
December 2017, HK$263,777,000 (2016: HK$251,634,000)
of the Group’s assets, was held as cash that is considered
readily realisable.

EMFER MBS REER  B2017F12H31 8 K
EEEFEEAEGHER ZIREMNEE BB 263,777,000 7T
(2016 4F : ##E 251,634,0007T) ©

R FFHR NREEXARAR



22 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c) Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from cash
and cash equivalents which were contracted at short-term
variable rates and expose the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk. The Group’s interest rate profile as monitored by
management is set out in (i) below.

(i) Interest rate risk

Fixed rate bank deposits ~ $R775E 8317 7K & & F =
Variable rate bank deposits #8777 EifF 5% &

(ii) Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2017, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates,
with all other variables held constant, would increase/
decrease the Group’s profit after tax and retained earnings
by approximately HK$443,000 (2016: HK$539,000)
respectively. Other components of equity would not be
affected (2016: HK$NIl) by changes in interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred
at the end of the reporting period and had been applied to
the exposure to interest rate risk for financial instruments
in existence at that date. The 100 basis point increase
or decrease represents management’s assessment of
a reasonably possible change in interest rates over the
period until the next annual reporting date. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2016.

22 HKEREERRAFEE

() F=EmEME

AEEZNERBREZERG KRS FERE ZHNTEEH
FPHNERSBAREERSRANEREAR - NEBZH
EHNAEREEESLHFHINOGT

() FEER

2016
Effective
interest
rate

HK$'000
% AT

179,241
34,572

(i) BREDH

R2017F12 A1 BEMBEMB LA XERTEMNENR
T - EET AT R ARG, R A 1008 F ¢ &9 RGN,
BAORER 2 BREFBERASBEFBLOD BB 443,000
JL (2016 4F : B 539,000 T ) « EfhiEam T F| LB
LS (2016 4F @ BT L) o

NERBERESTEREFEZEHERAMEPRTEME
A WEEARNRZBATEH KB TERIETEMET
B FREE - 1002 TN DIEEEBHERZ T —
EFEREHAPEA AR BEE 2T H - DR
2016 FARE) Z EAEHTT o
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22 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(d) Foreign currency risk

(i) Foreign currency transactions

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through
sales and expense transactions that are denominated in a
currency other than the functional currency of the operations
to which they relate. The currencies giving rise to this risk are
primarily United States Dollar and British Pound.

(i) Recognised assets and liabilities

In respect of trade receivables and payables held in
currencies other than the functional currency of the
operations to which they relate, the Group ensures that the
net exposure is kept to an acceptable level, by buying or
selling foreign currencies at spot rates where necessary to
address short-term imbalances.

(iii)  The following table details the Group’s exposure at
the end of the reporting period to currency risk arising
from recognised assets or liabilities denominated in
a currency other than the functional currency of the
entity to which they relate.

R B F &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(B REN)

22 BXEREERAFE@E

(d) IMEERBE

i) HEXRS

AEBEIZHRNUAZFREEBRNEEBUIN2ERTIE
ZWAFZ B ZAAEINER R - BREEARZEE T

(i) CRIALEREE
ERUNEBNEEBUINZERBEZHEBE SR X
ENHIEA  AEBSEL2RNERN T FER - URE
EXREARELINE  BRFZESQHEFAE—ETEIN
RE -

TRINFAEER S HIR AT LR HER AL
EREENIIN-RBERIIENEESAEMAR S
B ER o

(iii)

2017 2016
United United

States British States British

Dollars Pounds Dollars Pounds

Ep B ETT S

’000 ’000 000 000

Tt T8 FT FiE

Trade and other receivables & 5 & E b fE I BR 18 22,248 768 23,372 837

Cash and cash equivalents IR& RIBSZEEIER 30,808 87 30,477 452

Trade and other payables & 5 N E B BRIA (8,362) - (8,105) -
Net exposure arising from  BERZ EEM
recognised assets and BEMEBUFE

liabilities 44,694 855 45,744 1,289

R FFHR NREEXARAR



22 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(d) Foreign currency risk (Continued)
(iv)  Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the approximate change in the
Group’s profit after tax and retained earnings in response to
reasonably possible changes in the foreign exchange rates
to which the Group has significant exposure at the end of
the reporting period.

British Pounds T

Results of the analysis as presented in the above table
represent an aggregation of the effects on each of the Group
entities’ profit after tax and retained earnings measured in
the respective functional currencies, translated into Hong
Kong Dollar at the exchange rate ruling as at the end of the
reporting period for presentation purposes.

22 HKEREERRAFEE

(d) IMEEEE(E)
(iv) SBESA

TREBAEERAREMRIEMATERARR 2 ERZ
BIEA RS YRR EEBEBLREBNER BN -

2016
Effect
Increase/ on profit
(decrease) in after tax and
foreign retained
exchange earnings
rate HEREIE
BEE =38 70, 8 A R AR
O A) BRNz&E8
HK$’000
BT T
5% 580
(5%) (580)

EXRIIRzDMERIETS KB R AR ER 2 RBRIEH
REBYREERERERRZER(RERME) LB AE
TLRt B2 AR Z 45T »
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22 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(d) Foreign currency risk (Continued)
(iv)  Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming that
the change in foreign exchange rates occurred at the end
of the reporting period and applied to each of the Group
entities” exposure to currency risk for non-derivative financial
instruments in existence at that date, and that all other
variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant. In
this respect, it is assumed that the pegged rate between
the Hong Kong Dollar and the United States Dollar would
be materially unaffected by any changes in movement in
value of the United States Dollar against other currencies.
The percentage of increase and decrease in foreign
exchange rate represents the management’s assessment of
reasonably possible changes in foreign exchange rates over
the period until the next annual reporting date. The analysis
is performed on the same basis for 2016.

(e) Fair values

All financial instruments are carried at amounts not materially
different from their fair value as at 31 December 2017 and
2016.

23  MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

() Key management personnel remuneration
Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group

represents amounts paid to the Company’s executive
directors as disclosed in note 7.

R B F &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(B REN)

22 BXEREERAFE@E

(d) SMERBE (48)
(iv) BBESHF(E)

FREDHMIBREXSHNFERNREL - XA
SESEBUNZANFEZFTESRITAMAR 2E
KRk MAAEMAIZRZ(LENE)RFTE - 5
b BRETHAETZHIERF A ERAXTHEAEME
BBBMIEARE - MEJNZESHREEEMFTEX
REE N —EAFEREHRILABM SRR EEE) - £1T
DT 2 EHEEL 2016 FF PRIz 2 EREAER o

(e) AFYE
FEemTEZ ABRSREEEN 2017 F KX 2016 F 12 A 31
ABZ AT EEEATR -

23 BEAZEAXRZRES

@ FEEBEEAEMS

EEIEEREABMSBEXNAATNTEERI T
WA -

2017 2016

HK$’000 HK$'000

BET T BT

Short-term employee benefits SEEL=EER 11,382 10,724
Post-employment benefits BIERREA 662 662
12,044 11,386

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note 5(b)).

HEH N B IR R B AN M FE5(D) ©

R FFHR NREEXARAR



23 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

(b)  Other related party transactions

(i) On May 2014, the Company entered into two
agreements with RJW Technology Company
Limited (“RJW Technology”) to acquire six precise
electrochemical machining machines (“PECM
Machines”) and the proprietary technologies,
intellectual properties and technical information
in relation to the PECM Machines (“PECM
Technologies”) for a total cash consideration of
HK$12,000,000 and HK$4,000,000, respectively.
RJW Technology is owned as to 50% by each of
the two executive directors, Mr. Wong, John Ying
Man and Mr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin. Details of
the two agreements are set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 12 May 2014.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the
last PECM Machine with a value of HK$2,950,000
was transferred to the Group. As such, all PECM
machines and Technologies had been delivered
to the Group at 31 December 2016. The balance
of HK$Nil (2016: HK$2,950,000) due to RJW
Technology has not yet been paid at 31 December
and was included in the trade and other payables of
the Group and the Company.

(c) Balances with subsidiaries are disclosed in the
Company’s statement of financial position contained
in note 26(a).

24 NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

After the end of the reporting period, the directors proposed
a final dividend. Further details are disclosed in note 20(b).

23 BEBRAZEARZIRESR

(b) EAEABSIRE

() R201445 A - A QA EBRIWHE fiT A 7 (TRIWEH
i) RIS ik - MRIWHRITEBE NG RBEREL
BT #((PECMHES ) M ERBEELEMI#
Z BRI« AGEEE R E R ([PECM ¥ ])
HEiR iR R RIS D B AE 12,000,000 T KB
4,000,0007C ° RIW T AR ZIHfTEE - BR
BOuERENBEES BB 50%RE - MK Bz
ZEHBDRARAR2014E5 12 B2 BRERQH

HZE2016F 12 A31HILEFE B —aEEBY
2,950,000 7T H) PECM # # 32 1< 45 AN 52 [ » A It -
Ffr 5 PECM# 83 I £ fit B 182016 F12 H31 A X
NFAREE HE12A318 1L #WEA I FRIW
Technolog &2 & ¥ = T (2016 F : 7 # 2,950,000
TL)  WEBIAR S RAEERAR B EMBERNRK -

() HBRRMBARZAHREEARTANTBRRLEZ
Bt 26(a) 2R -

24 AHEHBRRAREER

AREHBBILE EEEBREZRE - FERMHF
20(b) °
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25 SUBSIDIARIES’ INFORMATION

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries
which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities
of the Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless
otherwise stated.

R B F &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(B REN)

25 MEBATESR
TEAEBYEE LERABIHBLARARBENT - B
KERIBIE « BT 2 IRIE AL EmAR -

Particulars of Proportion of
issued and paid ownership interest held
Place of Place of up capital by the Company Principal
Name of company incorporation operation BRTR NG activities
RRER b BEWH BRREZFE BRER TEEHR
Mass Top Corporation The British Hong Kong 1 share of US$1 100% Property holding
Virgin Islands Bl 1REBRER1ET RENE
AERES
Raymond (Panyu Nansha) Electrical The PRC The PRC Registered capital 100% Manufacture and sale
Appliances Development Company H i 1JS$22,380,000 of electrical home
Limited (Note 1) FRER appliances
ME(BBEL)BEER 22,380,000% 7T RERHE
ARAA (1) FHER
Note: Bk -
1 The statutory financial statements of Raymond (Panyu 1. MR (FBEEY) EREREBRARHZ2017F12A31H

Nansha) Electrical Appliances Development Company
Limited for the financial year ended 31 December 2017
respectively, prepared under generally accepted accounting
principles applicable in the PRC, have been audited by &M
EXYeTMEBAARAR.

2 FEFHHREZTEE; TR - CEBEMNES
SR EBAERARER -

R FFHR NREEXARAR
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26 FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE 26 ZAATBKEESR

COMPANY
(a) Statement of financial position (@) HBRRE
2016
HK$'000
BT T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment W% - B R 541
Investments in subsidiaries WEBARIRE 173,703
174,244
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 2,389
Trade and other receivables B RE M EKERTE 194,461
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEURHI B R RIERIE 5,119
Tax recoverable AR ERIR 541
Cash and cash equivalents ReMBeE@EAR 225,845
428,355
Current liabilities mEEE
Trade and other payables B9 REAMEMNIRE 103,919
Amounts due to subsidiaries RN EPNGIE S 22,110
Tax payable JERITRIE -
Dividends payable AR B 336
126,365
Net current assets REEEFE 301,990
Total assets less current liabilities #ZEERREBERE 476,234
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Deferred tax liabilities FREHIBEE
NET ASSETS EEFHE 476,086
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEARL#HE
Share capital fi& A 448,167
Other reserves H A 27,919
TOTAL EQUITY R 476,086

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors #2018 4 3 A 28 HEE E & LA R TIE -
on 28 March 2018.

Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae Mr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin
BEA BEYXHE
Director Director

EF EF
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iR B M &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(B REN)

26 FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE 26 ZXATRRMEER®)

COMPANY (Continued)

(b) Details of changes in the Company’s (b) FREFIARDFEBIERDAKBDFARF

individual components of reserve during the KNBEEE
year:
Share Capital Retained Total
capital reserve earnings equity
B REEF BEXRGEE AR
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(b BT BT BETT BB
At 1 January 2016 H2016F1 A1 BES 445,821 3,488 45,522 494,831
Changes in equity for 2016: 2016 EZ2E
Profit and total comprehensive RERNEZE
income for the year W B - - 7,962 7,962
Dividends approved in RS
respect of the
- current year - AF 20(b)(i) - - (9,597) (9,597)
— previous year -AF 20(o)(i) - - (19,150) (19,150)
Shares issued under share BRED #1720
option scheme
- gross proceeds - Elfia 20(a)(i) 2,040 - - 2,040
— transfer from capital reserve - HEAREER 306 (306) - -
Cancellation of share options BB - (152) 152 -
2,346 (458) (20,633) (18,745)
At 31 December 2016 R2016 512 A 31 B &8 448,167 3,030 24,889 476,086
At 1 January 2017 R2017F1 A1 RS 448,167 3,030 24,889 476,086
Changes in equity for 2017 2017 EREET
Profit and total comprehensive AEGFIRZERELEE
income for the year - - 46,338 46,338
Dividends approved in HARE
respect of the
— current year - A 20(b)(i) - - (9,718) (9,718)
- previous year -E 20(b)(i) - - (29,137) (29,137)
Shares issued under share ERED T2 RN
option scheme
— gross proceeds - Bz 20(a)(i) 4,817 - - 4,817
— transfer from capital reserve - HEAREER 739 (739) - -
Cancellation of share options BUBRB R E - - - -
5,556 (739) 7,483 12,300
At 31 December 2017 R2017E12 A 31 BEH 453,723 2,291 32,372 488,386

R FFHR NREEXARAR
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27 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

The methods, estimates and judgements the directors used
in applying the Group’s accounting policies have a significant
impact on the Group’s financial position and operating
results. Some of the accounting policies require the Group
to apply estimates and judgements, on matters that are
inherently uncertain. The critical accounting judgements
in applying the Group’s accounting policies are described
below.

(@) Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-
line basis or reducing balance basis over the estimated
useful lives. The Group reviews annually the useful life of an
asset and its residual value, if any. The depreciation expense
for future periods is adjusted if there are significant changes
from the previous estimation.

(b) Impairments

In considering the impairment loss that may be required
for certain property, plant and equipment, interests in
leasehold land held for own use under operating leases, and
investments in subsidiaries, the recoverable amount of the
asset needs to be determined. The recoverable amount is
the greater of the fair value less costs of disposal and the
value in use. It is difficult to estimate precisely the fair value
price because quoted market prices for the assets may not
be readily available. In determining the value in use, expected
cash flows generated by the asset are discounted to their
present value, which requires significant judgement relating
to items such as level of revenue and amount of operating
costs. The Group uses all readily available information in
determining an amount that is a reasonable approximation
of the recoverable amount, including estimates based on
reasonable and supportable assumptions and projections of
items such as revenue and operating costs.

Impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts are assessed
and provided based on the directors’ regular review of
the ageing analysis and an evaluation of collectability. A
considerable level of judgement is exercised by the directors
when assessing the credit worthiness and past collection
history of each individual customer.

27  BEMERT R E

EERANAEBZEHABENTTE  MERABH ALK
BZHBRAREEXEAEATE - REGTHRER
AEEEAG RAME T EEEF L - BRETHEE
REREEZ GEERFINT

(@ WE

WE - BB MREBUNERESRREREZEENGA
ERFHRNE - SESSFRUGZFEENERFY
m REMET - 0F  RERNTERX ERARBEGFT
FREAREMmAE -

(b) RE

ZRIETYE BELRE RELEHERIFERAZ
Tt - RNHB AR ZRE KA WEEER fE L IREE
iR AETEEZAIRESHE - AR SRR EER
EREEME LRSS - ARUETEEEZMBMETEER
SR - MUEDAERMMAR EE c EETEREER
BEMELZEHMRERENNTREEREGEE - MER
BRBFKFREERACHEFRBFLERNG - A5H
EETERRERAMEAENGZER  MEB/AUKE
THRZAEMNESE  BRRBSEMAXFZHRELE
AR B IS XA MR ERAEERTBUR -

AEEREEEEEMETZRED T R A WEFFEER
ZEREBERETAR BEERFEEBREFZEEER
KB ER MRk 1T — e R 2 HIEf -
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27 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(b)  Impairments (Continued)
An increase or decrease in the above impairment loss would
affect the operating results in the year and in future years.

()

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement
on the future tax treatment of certain transactions and
interpretation of tax rules. The Group carefully evaluates
the tax implications of transactions and tax provisions are
set up accordingly. The tax treatment of transactions is
reconsidered periodically to take into account all changes in
tax legislation.

Income taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses not
yet used and temporary deduction differences. Those
deferred tax assets can only be recognised to the extent
that it is probable that future profit will be available against
which the unused tax credit can be utilised, consequently
management’s judgement is required to assess the
probability of future taxable profits. Management’s
assessment is constantly reviewed and additional deferred
tax assets are recognised if it becomes probable that
future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

(d)

The Group performs regular reviews of the carrying amounts
of inventories with reference to aged inventories analyses,
projections of expected future saleability of goods and
management experience and judgement. Based on these
reviews, write-down of inventories will be made when the
carrying amounts of inventories fall below their estimated net
realisable value. Due to changes in customers’ performance,
actual saleability of goods may be different from estimates
and profit or loss could be affected by differences from
estimates.

Inventory provision

R B F &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(B REN)

27  EEHhEETRHE @)

(b) RE(E)

EAURE BRI DN SOR A & R BRI 2 M F AR

() P8
EEMESHEBESRYUE TR S RKBIARE 2 54 R
BRAUZRE - AEEREWTHTZH2BEHIE - T F
%h%mﬁ%ﬁohﬁi%zmﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ'u%
R BIBED 2 B &

BEREBREEEDRARDBEERRSNREE 2 HHEEBEE
R o RN FIE LT IR B E(E 7 R JOR RIS AT A (F 85
AEBERREN SRR SHER - BEEANERKE

ARBUE M Z AT REME o B IR 2 FHA TOE HIRAT - fe R 2R
BRUHEME A FWERETRIBEE - BlemREIMNETER
HEE °

d) FERE

$‘§l$hﬁiﬁﬂ$ﬁéﬂfiﬁ“ i - REIRREE - &

BB LA FERDE - ERXitRE  ERFERE
ETHREREHEFREEFEMEFERE BAEFPX
RRE  BRHEESHELAAEZERIF TR E
i Mk E A
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27 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(e) Share-based payments

The estimate of the fair value of the share options granted
to employees and other eligible persons measured by
professional valuers based on the Black Scholes model with
modifications to reflect the impact of vesting periods and
exercise patterns on the option value. The accuracy of the
above estimates could affect the amount of share-based
payments transactions recognised in profit or loss.

28 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FORTHEYEAR ENDED
3| DECEMBER 2017

Up to the date of issue of these consolidated financial
statements, the HKICPA has issued a number of
amendments and new standards which are not yet effective
for the year ended 31 December 2017 and which have not
been adopted in these consolidated financial statements.
These include the following which may be relevant to the
Group:

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments’

HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts

with customers'’

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Share-based payment:
Classification and
measurement of
share-based payment

transactions’

HK (IFRIC) 22 Foreign currency
transactions and
advance

consideration’

HKFRS 16 Leases?

HK(IFRIC)23 Uncertainty over income

tax treatments?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019.

27 BEHEFTRHE @

() HUROABERZH

BETREEREMABBALZBREZ AFEMRFTTIHE
XEEMREHREATE - WIEHEFTARRBREEE
HEBMITERAZEE - DlAHEEREATZEN
B RERAE X HERERER IS

28 HZE2017F 1283 BIEFEECEMER
EM2IET - HEARRECEBERE

HENSGRAPBRETIEZR  BEQIASEHEM
ZIERT RFER - BREZ2017F12 31 BIEFED
REH - BEMARLESRAMBERERENR - BLBIEUT

FlRE A EHEBEN AR -

R BHREENF IR
FBM IR ELERF 1557

BRI IEERF 25RER]

B8 (ARG EHREREZES)
- BREE 225
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28 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,

NEVW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FORTHEYEAR ENDED
3| DECEMBER 2017 (Continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments and new standards
is expected to be in the period of initial application. So far
the Group has identified some aspects of the new standards
which may have a significant impact on the consolidated
financial statements. Further details of the expected impacts
are discussed below. While the assessment has been
substantially completed for HKFRS9 and HKFRS15, the
actual impacts upon the initial adoption the standard may
differs as the assessment completed to date is based on
the information currently available to the Group, and further
impacts may be identified before the standards are initially
applied in the Group’s interim financial report for the six
months ended 30 June 2018. The Company also change its
accounting policy elections, including the transition options,
until the standards are initially applied in that financial report.

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

HKFRS 9 will replace the current standard on accounting
for financial instruments, HKAS 39, Financial instruments:
Recognition and measurement. HKFRS 9 introduces new
requirements for classification and measurement of financial
assets, calculation of impairment of financial assets and
hedge accounting. On the other hand, HKFRS incorporates
without substantive changes the requirements of HKAS 39
for recognition and derecognition of financial instruments
and the classification of financial liabilities. Expected impacts
of the new requirements on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements are as follows:

R B F &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(B REN)

28 EZE20I17F 1283 BLEEECHEMER

EMzEE] - HEARREZBEERE

(%)

R B IE 72 AT (b 45 LB RT AT 22 RIZE 4040 8 R B R O FERARZ
E-FERAL SECHEENENNIELTEAELEHS
HUBBRRELEAFE - TENWANATENEZH
o AT BM B MELRNEIR LB EM I RELERE
16 EEEATK  BHRNRARENERTER
AR AR5l AERANEE R AT &S
MEER  LARREREHAZARRE-TEENTE
ARAEE#HE_T - \FRA=THILXEALREAR
BRI IS RS - ARRMNEE ST HEERE B8RS
B  BEEZMEREVSERZER R

BRMBHREEE IR

FEMBHREEFEIRHRARTERTASER - &
AEFERIE39 - M T A : HRKTE - BBME®
SFEAFIFIATEMEENFMNTE - ERWEERE
BMERSFTHHMER - Z—TH - BAEMBHREERL
BELEE MARBEEREIOREHEEHTANR
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28 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FORTHEYEAR ENDED
3|1 DECEMBER 2017 (Continued)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (Continued)
(a) Classification and measurement

HKFRS 9 contains three principal classification categories
for financial assets: measured at (1) amortised cost, (2)
fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) and (3) fair value
through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) as follows:

o The classification for debt instruments is determined
based on the entity’s business model for managing
the financial assets and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the asset. If a debt instrument
is classified as FVTOCI then effective interest,
impairments and gains/losses on disposal will be
recognised in profit or loss.

o For equity securities, the classification is FVTPL
regardless of the entity’s business model. The
only exception is if the equity security is not held
for trading and the entity irrevocably elects to
designate that security as FVTOCI. If an equity
security is designated as FVTOCI then only dividend
income on that security will be recognised in other
comprehensive income without recycling.

Based on the preliminary assessment, the Group expects
that its financial assets currently measured at amortised cost
and FVTPL will continue with their respective classification
and measurements upon the adoption of HKFRS 9.

The classification and measurement requirements for
financial liabilities under HKFRS 9 largely unchanged from
HKAS 39, except that HKFRS 9 requires the fair value
change of a financial liability designated as FVPTL that is
attributable to changes of that financial liability’s own credit
risk to be recognised in other comprehensive income (without
reclassification to profit or loss). A more detailed analysis is
required to determine the extent of the impact.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

28 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,

NEVW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FORTHEYEAR ENDED
3| DECEMBER 2017 (Continued)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (Continued)

(b) Impairment

The new impairment model in HKFRS 9 replaces the
“incurred loss” model in HKAS 39 with an “expected credit
loss” model. Under the expected credit loss model, it will
no longer be necessary for a loss event to occur before an
impairment loss is recognised. Instead, an entity is required
to recognise and measure expected credit losses as either
12-month expected credit losses or lifetime expected
credit losses, depending on the asset and the facts and
circumstances. This new impairment model will not have
material impairment due to earlier recognition of credit losses
on the Group’s trade and other receivables.

HKFRS |5, Revenue from contracts with
customers

HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for
recognising revenue from contracts with customers. HKFRS
15 will replace the existing revenue standards, HKAS 18,
Revenue, which covers revenue arising from sale of goods
and rendering of services, and HKAS 11, Construction
contracts, which specified the accounting for revenue from
construction contracts. The Group is currently assessing the
impacts of adopting HKFRS 15 on its consolidated financial
statements. Based on the preliminary assessment, the
Group has identified the following areas which are likely to
be effected:
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28

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FORTHEYEAR ENDED
3|1 DECEMBER 2017 (Continued)

HKFRS |5, Revenue from contracts with
customers (Continued)

(a)

Timing of revenue recognition

The Group’s revenue recognition policies are
disclosed in note 2(p). Currently, revenue arising from
the sale of goods is generally recognised when the
risks and rewards of ownership have passed to the
customers.

Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised when the
customer obtains control of the promised good
or service in the contract. HKFRS 15 identified 3
situations in which control of the promised good or
service is regarded as being transferred over time;

(@) When the customer simultaneously receives
and consumes the benefits provided by the
entity’s performance, as the entity performs;

(b) When the entity’s performance creates or
enhances an asset (for example work in
progress) that the customer controls as the
asset is created or enhanced; and
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

28 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEVW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FORTHEYEAR ENDED
3| DECEMBER 2017 (Continued)

HKFRS |5, Revenue from contracts with
customers (Continued)

(a) Timing of revenue recognition (Continued)

(c) When the entity’s performance does not
create an asset with an alternative use to the
entity and the entity has an enforceable right
to payment for performance completed to
date.

If the contract terms and the entity’s activities do not
fall into any of these 3 situations, then under HKFRS
15 the entity recognises revenue for the sale of that
good or service at a single point in time, being when
control has passed. Transfer of risks and rewards
of ownership is only one of the indicators that will
be considered in determining when the transfer of
control occurs.

The change from the risk-and-reward approach to
the contract-by-contract transfer-of-control approach
will not materially affect the point in time when
revenue is recognised under the Group’s current
contract terms, business practice and accounting

policy.

The Group has assessed that revenue from sales
of electrical home appliances will continue to be
recognised at a point in time. Currently the group
recognises revenue upon the point in time when the
risks and rewards of ownership of the electrical home
appliances have been transferred to the customer.
The Group has assessed that under the transfer-of-
control approach in the new standard revenue will
generally be recognised in accordance with shipping
terms stipulated in contracts, which is the point in
time when the customer has the ability to direct the
use of the finished goods and obtain substantially all
of the remaining benefits of the finished goods.
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POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FORTHEYEAR ENDED
3|1 DECEMBER 2017 (Continued)

HKFRS |5, Revenue from contracts with
customers (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Significant financing component

HKFRS 15 requires an entity to adjust the transaction
price for the time value of money when a contract
contains a significant financing component,
regardless of whether the payments from customers
are received significantly in advance or in arrears.

The Group would only apply such policy when
payments are significantly deferred, which is currently
not common in the Group’s arrangements with its
customers. Currently, the Group does not apply such
a policy when payment are received in advance.

Sales with a right of return

When the customers are allowed to return the
products, the Group estimates the level of returns
and makes and adjustment against revenue and cost
of sales.

Currently, the Group does not apply sales with a
right to return with the customers except for quality
defects. Based on the past experience, sales return
due to quality defects are not material.

The Group expects that the adoption of HKFRS 15
will not materially affect how the Group recognises
revenue and cost of sales when the customers have
a right of return.
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28 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,

NEVW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FORTHEYEAR ENDED
3| DECEMBER 2017 (Continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases

As disclosed in note 2(f), currently the Group classifies leases
into finance leases and operating leases and accounts
for the lease arrangements differently, depending on the
classification of the lease. The Group enters into some
leases as the lessor and others as the lessee.

HKFRS 16 is not expected to impact significantly on the way
that lessors account for their right and obligations under a
lease. However, once HKFRS 16 is adopted, lessees will
no longer distinguish between finance leases and operating
leases. Instead, subject to practical expedients, lessees will
account for all leases in a similar way to current finance lease
accounting, i.e. at the commencement date of the lease
the lessee will recognise and measure a lease liability at the
present value of the minimum future lease payments and will
recognise a corresponding “right-of-use” asset. After initial
recognition of this asset and liability, the lessee will recognise
interest expense accrued on the outstanding balance of the
lease liability, and the depreciation of the right-of-use asset,
instead of the current policy of recognising rental expenses
incurred under operating leases on a systematic basis over
the lease term. As a practical expedient, the lessee can elect
not to apply this accounting model to short-term leases (i.e.
where the lease term is 12 months or less) and to leases of
low-value assets, in which case the rental expenses would
continue to be recognised on a systematic basis over the
lease term.

HKFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group’s accounting as a
lessee of leases for properties, plant and equipment which
are currently classified as operating leases. The application
of the new accounting model is expected to lead to an
increase both assets and liabilities and to impact on the
timing of the expense recognition in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss over the period of the lease.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR fREE&m%

LOSS
2013 2014 2015 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
ST T BT T BT T BT T
Revenue A 1,182,806 1,034,875 088,449 1,019,442
Profit before taxation B AT 44,723 44,169 44,745 72,704
Income tax FriS 8t (11,718) (15,883) (8,417) (21,693)
Profit for the year and AR E
attributable to equity REFE R Z 5 H
shareholders of the
Company 33,005 28,286 36,328 51,011

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL #ZEBBERREK

POSITION
2013 2014 2015 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$ 000
BEET T BT T R T TSR T
Property, plant and W - WE REE
equipment 196,864 196,514 165,693 145,331

Interests in leasehold land ~ 1RIBEE LA EHEE
held for own use under Bz tHiERS

operating leases 9,538 9,076 8,142 7,251
Deferred tax assets RERIBE E 7,987 7,476 8,346 4,910
Net current assets mBEEFE 381,318 383,356 382,380 414,705
Deferred tax liabilities BEHIERE (182) (174) (168) (308)
Net assets BEFE 595,525 596,248 564,393 571,889
Share capital &N 233,390 438,527 445,821 448,167
Reserves ] 362,135 157,721 118,572 123,722

Total equity attributable to AN BB R FE(GHEZS
equity shareholders of
the Company 595,525 596,248 564,393 571,889
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